
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Thursday, 13 June 2019. 
 01476 406080

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Friday, 21 June 2019 at 2.00 pm
Belton Room, Jubilee Church Life Centre, London Road, 

Grantham, NG31 6EY

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor Chris Benn (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Mark Whittington, 
Councillor Paul Wood and Councillor Sue Woolley

Agenda
1.  Membership

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2.  Apologies

3.  Disclosure of interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4.  Minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2019 (Pages 3 - 9)

5.  Updates from previous meeting

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


6.  Internal Audit Annual Report 2018-19 and Follow Up Report
Reports of the Internal Auditors

Appendix A: Internal Audit Report 2018-19

Appendix B: Internal Audit Follow Up Report

(Pages 11 - 42)

7.  Outturn Report for 2018-2019
Report from the Cabinet Member for Finance.

(Pages 43 - 72)

8.  Counter Fraud Annual Report 2018-19
Report from the Cabinet Member for Finance.

(Pages 73 - 78)

9.  Health and Safety Annual Report 2018-19
Report from the Cabinet Member Commercial and Operational.

(Pages 79 - 97)

10.  Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent.



Minutes
Governance and Audit Committee
Thursday, 21 March 2019

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor David Mapp (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Damian Evans Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor Brian Sumner

OTHER MEMBERS
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance

AUDIT
Grant Thornton Accountants, (Paul Harvey)
Head of Internal Audit, RSM (Chris Williams)
Senior Manager, RSM (Amjad Ali)

OFFICERS
Strategic Director for Resources (Debbie Muddimer)
Assistant Director for Resources (Richard Wyles)
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey Elliott)
Civic and Democratic Officer (Anita Eckersley)

41. Apologies
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Paul Wood and Peter Stephens.

42. Disclosure of interests
No interests were disclosed.

43. Minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2018
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2018 were proposed, seconded and 
agreed as a correct record.

44. Updates from previous meeting
A Member referred to the action point at minute 35 noting the Committee would be kept 
informed of the findings from the Communities and Wellbeing OSC in respect of the 
issue of frozen pipes. The Chairman noted that the item had not been on the agenda for 
the February meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing OSC.  It was also noted the 
issue had been raised at Council.  

Clarification from the Assistant Director of Housing prior to the meeting had been sought 
and he noted that a discussion had been had with the Chair of the Communities and 
Wellbeing OSC. It had also been explained that mitigating actions were still being 
completed as were the measures of effectiveness of the actions and outcomes.  These 
would be included in a report that would go to the OSC in the new Municipal year.

3

Agenda Item 4



Members expressed their concerns at the length of time it had taken to resolve the 
issues and receive feedback.  

Further discussion took place on how faults were reported and it was noted that fault 
reports went directly to Liberty Gas but it was not clear if the Council received notification 
of all the faults. Discussion ensued on the potential contractual issues and the need to 
determine what detail was in the contract regarding the process of dealing with reporting 
faults to the Council. 

A Member proposed and this was seconded that a meeting with the Chief Executive 
should be arranged in order to outline the concerns.  The Chairman commented that he 
would meet with the Chief Executive and convey the Committee’s concerns. 

Action point: 
That a meeting of the Chairman and the Chief Executive is arranged in order to 
discuss the Committee’s concerns in respect of this issue.

The Assistant Director, Resources provided an update on the action point referring to the 
recent Land Charge changes. He explained that the Government initiative to transfer 
local land charges data to HM Land Registry’s national digital service would impact on 
365 councils. Five Councils had migrated to the new system during 2018 and the 
anticipated end date of 2023 could prove challenging. It was noted that a number of 
councils such as Peterborough, East Lindsey and North East Leicestershire would be 
migrating during the current year.  

Members queried whether Councils would need to be fully digital and whether there was 
a date for SKDC to transfer.  It was noted that Councils would need to be fully digital.  
SKDC was only part digital and would not be transferring yet.

The updated was noted.

45. Certification of Grants and Returns 2017/18
The Assistant Director for Resources referred to the report which summarised the work 
completed by KPMG during 2018/19 and provided the Committee with an update on the 
findings from the audits of the 2017/18 Housing Benefit Subsidy claim and the 2017/18 
Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return.  The letter received from KMPG referred to 
the 2017/18 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim and was the only claim covered by Public 
Sector Audit Appointments Ltd.

The audit had been qualified due to a small number of errors being identified during the 
sample testing of Rent Allowances and this had led to an incorrect calculation of 
earnings. An action plan was being developed to address this during 2019/20. The 
action plan would include, increasing the sample rate, increased training and support for 
staff and mentoring of newly appointed staff.  

The audit of the Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim had identified a number of errors which 
resulted in amendments to the claim. The overall impact to the claim was a £359 
increase to the subsidy claimed against a total certified value of £28m.

The audit of the Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return had identified two errors: (i) 
The recording of the right to buy sales figures should have been in pounds and pence 
but because the cell format had been determined by the Government Delta website, the 
return was submitted but the Council was unable to record the sums received in pounds 
and pence:  (ii) An expenditure of £1,140 had been included on the return for the quarter 

4



which was after the date of the invoice but the invoice was received and processed 
during the following quarter. 

Reference was also made to the increase of the fee by £2500 and how this was due to 
additional work and time spent calculating the impact of the errors and checking the 
amendments to the claim.  A Member queried whether the PSAA had been notified of 
the extra work and the Committee was informed that it was normal practice under PSAA 
regulations to increase the fee due to the requirement for increased testing.

The Governance and Audit Committee accepted the report.

46. External Audit Plan 2018/19
The Engagement Manager from Grant Thornton explained that the report provided an 
overview of the planned scoping and timing of the statutory audit of the final accounts as 
well as the Value for Money work in respect of the financial year 2018/19.  

The Audit Plan highlighted potential risks that required special audit consideration and 
procedures to be put in place to address the likelihood of a material financial error. The 
risks were not unique to the Authority but were risks facing all local authorities and had 
been identified as: 

 Valuation of property, plant and equipment
 Valuation of pension fund net liability  
 Management override of controls

The level of materiality for errors was usually set by the annual external audit and for 
2018/19 this had been set at £1.4m which equated to 2% of the Council’s gross 
expenditure in the previous year. The “clearly trivial” level was also set by the auditors 
and for 2018/19 had been set at £70k. Uncorrected omissions or misstatements in the 
accounts above this level would be reported to the Committee.

The value for money element focussed on whether the Council had appropriate 
arrangements in place to secure value for money. Grant Thornton had assessed a 
potential significant risk surrounding financial sustainability due to the Council’s 
unbalanced budget for both 2020/21 and 2021/22. This was similar to many local 
authorities due to the impact of the national funding review.  During 2019/20 the Council 
would work to ensure a balanced position was achieved.

The annual audit fee of £36,400 had been set by the Public Sector Audit Appointments 
Limited (PSAA) and was incorporated into the 2019/20 budget. The recurring non-audit 
fee was £5000.

Discussion took place on the relevance of information contained in this first report and 
how future reports would be refined. Further discussion took place on financial systems 
and potential risks and what comment would be provided on financial sustainability. The 
Committee would receive a report on sustainability at their July meeting. The audit 
progress report provided a timeline for audit deliverables and included a sector update 
summary of emerging national issues and developments. Also included were Issues that 
could impact the Council, the NHS and the wider public sector.

In response to a Member’s query about whether Grant Thornton would be undertaking 
an audit of the Council’s companies and the use of funds transferred to these companies 
from the public purse, the Committee was informed that Grant Thornton had been 
appointed to audit the Council not the companies.  The monies transferred were below 
the £1.4m material threshold but the companies would require auditing should they grow. 

5



The Committee recognised the need for the companies to be held to account but at the 
moment they didn’t qualify for audit. A new Companies Committee would be in place in 
the new Municipal year and part of their role would be to scrutinise the Company’s 
Terms of Reference. The Auditors would also consider the companies under the value 
for money banner.

General discussion took place on the procurement process of recent recruitments, 
departure processes and packages and officer’s interests and how these had been 
reviewed. The Engagement Manager from Grant Thornton noted that as part of the audit 
process concerns or objections could be raised with them.

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the 2018/19 External Audit Plan be 
accepted.

47. Internal Audit Updates
The Assistant Director, Resources, referred to the Internal Audit plan that had been 
approved by the Governance and Audit Committee on 22 March 2018. The Progress 
Report at Appendix A, provided details of the final six audits of the internal audit plan 
which was now 100% complete. It was suggested that questions were asked prior to the 
introduction of the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan.

Amjad Ali, RSM, presented the Internal Audit Plan noting that since the last Audit Report 
all audit work had been completed.  Reference was made to the seven reports included 
in the Progress Report,  these being: Temporary Staff, Construction Regulations, Fire 
Safety, Payroll and Expenses, Housing Benefits, Corporate Governance and the Follow 
Up 2 (2018/19). The Fire Safety Report had resulted in a Partial Assurance opinion but 
the rest of the reports had been given a positive opinion.  

With regards to the Fire Safety Report and as a result of testing, five medium and two 
low priority management actions had been identified.  Management actions were agreed 
in respect of these findings.

The medium priority findings were in relation to:

From a sample of 20 housing properties, three instances were identified where no 
evidence of a fire risk assessment had been undertaken in 2017. In addition one 
property had a fire alarm fitted but there was no evidence of a weekly check.

From a sample of 20 general/commercial properties, five properties had no evidence of a 
fire risk assessment in 2017, one showed as not being undertaken since 2015. In 
addition four had evidence of annual inspections of emergency lighting and fire alarm 
systems, but no evidence of weekly checks could be provided. A further five 
general/commercial properties could not provide any information.

Seven out of 20 commercial properties could not confirm an annual service of fire 
extinguishers had taken place. The list of trained users for the evacuation chair was out 
of date and there was no evidence that trained staff undertook practice sessions. The 
buddy list was also not updated.

A property survey had been commissioned but it was noted that until completed it would 
be seen as not be the most appropriate option. A fire drill had not been conducted since 
April 2017 which was an annual requirement.

Discussion took place on what types of commercial properties were involved, the need to 
ensure that Fire safety was improved as it was a legal requirement, whether action plans 

6



had been put in place and whether these checks would be implemented as a matter of 
urgency.  The Committee was informed that the auditors would be picking up the above 
points in their follow up report. A timetable to address the issues had been agreed and 
was being implemented.  An internal review would also be undertaken before the next 
meeting.

Action points: 

1) That the Assistant Director, Resources would ascertain whether the plan had 
been fully implemented and the issues addressed

2) That Internal Audit would undertake a review of the progress of the action plan 
that it had been implemented earlier than proposed.

Chris Williams, RSM, reminded the Committee that the draft Internal Audit Strategy 
2019/22 had been presented to the December 2018 meeting of the Committee. He noted 
that Internal Audit had subsequently met with senior officers and the Corporate 
Management Team to discuss the Audit Strategy for 2019/22. Outcomes from those 
meetings had informed the audit plan for 2019/20 and the indicative audit areas for the 
following two years. The Internal Audit Strategy 2019/22 was at Appendix C. The 
following audits had been added to the 2019/20 plan and re-profiling of other planned 
reviews across 2020/21 and 2021/22 had been undertaken.

Purchasing Cards
Complaints and Freedom of Information
Housing Benefits
Health and Safety
Building Control
Capital Strategy
Planning Service
Communication – Social Media

The fees were noted on page 151 and were based on 157 days (excluding VAT).  
Appendix B in the report provided an overview of what had and would be delivered by 
RSM over the six year period.

Appendix C on page 157 provided an overview of the Internal Audit Charter and how it 
established the purpose, authority and responsibilities for the internal audit service for 
South Kesteven District Council. The establishment of a charter was a requirement of 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and approval of the charter was the 
responsibility of the Governance and Audit Committee.

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP (RSM) provided the internal audit service and 
planned to perform their internal audit work with a view to reviewing and evaluating the 
risk management, control and governance arrangements that the Council had in place.  
It  focused in particular on how these arrangements helped to achieve the Council’s 
objectives. 

Discussion took place on whether an audit would be undertaken on the companies 
owned by the Council and when the follow ups highlighted in the previous item regarding 
fire safety would be undertaken as the Committee felt they should be done sooner rather 
than later. The Committee was assured that the follow ups would be undertaken early in 
the new financial year. With regards to the audit work in respect of the Council’s 
companies, none had been planned and discussions had taken place with management 

7



but if anything was brought to the auditor’s attention, this would of course be factored in 
to the contingency time that had been set aside.

Decisions:

a) Following their review of the Progress Report and Follow up report prepared by 
RSM the internal auditors, the Governance and Audit Committee noted the contents.

b) Following their review of the Internal Audit Strategy 2019/22 prepared by RSM the 
internal auditors, the Governance and Audit Committee approved the  Strategy.

48. Accounting Policies 2018/19
The Assistant Director, Resources, apologised for the late submission of the report.  He 
noted that the Statement of Accounts summarised the Council’s transactions for the 
2018/19 financial year and its position at the year-end, 31 March 2019.  The Statement 
would be prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018-19 (The Code) which was based on 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

All accounting policies had been reviewed for the 2018/19 financial year to ensure they 
complied with The Code and accurately reflected the transactions that had occurred and 
had been consistently applied. Appendix A provided detail of the accounting policies to 
be applied when preparing the Statement of Accounts 2018/19.

In accordance with good practice the accounting policies had been reviewed to remove 
policies that were not applicable to the Council and to include the new accounting 
standard, IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments, which came into effect for Local Authorities on 
1 April 2018. This standard set out the requirements for recognising and measuring 
financial assets and financial liabilities and were included in Appendix A.

The accounting standard IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers also came 
into effect on 1 April 2018. This had been considered and deemed to have no material 
impact.

A brief discussion took place on whether External Audit had been consulted with and 
whether some of the terminology was American.  It was noted that it was standard 
practice to have a discussion with the External Auditors and that some of the terminology 
was American. 

Decision:
Following consideration of the Statement of Accounting Policies, as set out in Appendix 
A of the report, the Governance & Audit Committee approved the Statement for use in 
the production of the 2018/19 financial statements.

49. Corporate Risk Register Update
The Assistant Director, Resources, noted that in accordance with the Terms of 
Reference for Governance and Audit Committee, the Corporate Risk Register should be 
presented to Committee twice a year.  The Committee had to monitor and review the risk 
management arrangements in place along with the activities undertaken to mitigate 
those risks.  
 
The Corporate Risk Register was last reviewed by Committee in June 2018 and 
scheduled for the December meeting but due to changes in senior management, and 
line management of some services, the Corporate Risk Register had been deferred to 

8



the meeting today. No material changes to the Corporate Risk Register required 
highlighting since it had been previously presented.  

The Committee was informed of the risks the Corporate Risk Register captured: 

 Maintaining an effective internal control environment 
 Ensuring ongoing resilience and quality in third parties 
 Achieving future financial resilience
 Building a suitable level of capacity, skills and culture within the Council 

workforce to achieve the change expected, whilst also still delivering business as 
usual

 Ensuring robust security measures to protect the Council’s data and assets from 
cyber threats

No Red (Very High) risks had been identified and all risks were classified as Amber 
(High) with actions in place to manage those risks and there were no concerns around 
the management of the risks.  Auditors had been consulted on the highlighted risks and 
had confirmed these were in line with a Council of our size.  Reference was made to 
Brexit and future resilience in respect of capacity, capabilities and skills.  The risk of 
cyber-attacks was mainly generic and plans were in place to reduce risks.

It was noted that the Council’s response to risks had changed over the course of two 
years from being risk averse to risk aware.

In conclusion the Assistant Director reported that the financial climate was a key driver 
and that new business had a risk, but a report would be brought to Committee later in 
the year providing an overview. A review would be undertaken in 2019/20 and would 
refresh and update the corporate risks, as well as define the Council’s overall risk 
appetite, with support from an external partner.  The findings from this review would be 
presented to the Governance and Audit Committee later in the year.

Discussion took place on the themes and how pertinent they were to the current climate 
and how they would provide a degree of scope. 

Decision:
Following a review of the Corporate Risk Register the Governance and Audit 
Committee noted the contents of the report and review and approved the Corporate 
Risk Register at Appendix A.

50. Close of Meeting
Best wishes from the Chairman were given to Members who were retiring.  Officers and 
the Auditors were thanked for their work during the year. 

The meeting closed at 3.14pm.

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Governance and Audit 
Committee
21 June 2019

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

        

Internal Audit Update
In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards the internal audit service provides 
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the authority’s governance, risk management 
and control arrangements. The opinion provided within individual reports issued to management 
contributes towards an annual audit opinion that forms part of the framework of assurances that 
informs the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.

Report Author

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer

 01476 406038

 t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright 6 June 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles 7 June 2019

Signed off by: Cllr Adam Stokes 10 June 2019

Recommendations to the decision maker

1. The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to review and note the Internal 
Audit Annual Report 2018-19 that has been prepared by the internal auditors RSM. 

2. The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to review and note the contents of 
the attached Follow Up Report that has been prepared by the internal auditors 
RSM. 

11

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19
1.1 The Internal Audit Annual Report, attached as Appendix A, details the Head of Internal 

Audit Opinion that the organisation has an adequate and effective framework for risk 
management, governance and internal control.  

2 Follow up Report
2.1 The Follow Up Report, attached as Appendix B, details the follow up of 34 management 

actions (17 Medium, 17 Low).  Reasonable progress has been made with 21 actions being 
implemented and the remaining 13 either not implemented or ongoing. 

3 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
3.1  N/A

4 Available Options Considered
4.1 N/A

5 Preferred Option
5.1 N/A

6 Reasons for the Recommendations
6.1 To conform with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, and to provide assurance to 

the Governance and Audit Committee regarding the Council’s internal control 
environment, it is recommended that Committee approve the Internal Audit Strategy 
2019/22.

7 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
7.1 N/A

8 Financial Implications 
8.1 These are included in the report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - Resources

9 Legal and Governance Implications 
9.1 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

require every local authority to maintain an adequate and effective internal audit service 
that would include a review of progress. Those charged with governance are asked to 
review the contents of the attached reports which summarises the work undertaken by the 
internal auditors and to review and note the internal audit annual report.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail Head of Legal

10 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
10.1 None

11 Risk and Mitigation
11.1 None

12 Community Safety Implications 
12.1 None

12



13 Background Papers
13.1 None

14 Appendices
14.1 Appendix A – Internal Audit Annual Report

14.2 Appendix B – Internal Audit Follow Up Report

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by Not applicable

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  21 June 2019

13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL  
Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 

 

21 June 2019 
 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP  
will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 

15



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 l  1 
 

CONTENTS 

 
1 The head of internal audit opinion ................................................................................................................................ 2 

2 The basis of our internal audit opinion ......................................................................................................................... 4 

3 Our performance .......................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Appendix A: Annual opinions ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

Appendix B: Summary of internal audit work completed 2018/2019 ................................................................................ 7 

For further information contact ........................................................................................................................................ 10 

 

 

 

 

 

16



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 l  2 
 

1.1 The opinion 
For the 12 months ended 31 March 2019, the Head of Internal Audit opinion for South Kesteven District Council is as 
follows: 

Head of internal audit opinion 2018/19  

 

 
 

Please see appendix A for the full range of annual opinions available to us in preparing this report and opinion. 

1.2 Scope and limitations of our work 
The formation of our opinion is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and approved by 
the Governance and Audit Committee, our opinion is subject to inherent limitations, as detailed below: 

 the opinion does not imply that internal audit has reviewed all risks and assurances relating to the Council;  
 

 the opinion is substantially derived from the conduct of risk-based plans generated from a robust and Council-
led assurance framework. As such, the assurance framework is one component that the Council takes into 
account in making its Annual Governance Statement (AGS); 
 

 the opinion is based on the findings and conclusions from the work undertaken, the scope of which has been 
agreed with management / lead individual; 
 

 the opinion is based on the testing we have undertaken, which was limited to the area being audited, as 
detailed in the agreed audit scope; 
 

 where strong levels of control have been identified, there are still instances where these may not always be 
effective. This may be due to human error, incorrect management judgement, management override, controls 
being by-passed or a reduction in compliance;  
 

 due to the limited scope of our audits, there may be weaknesses in the control system which we are not aware 
of, or which were not brought to attention; and 

1 THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 

In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the head of internal audit is required to 
provide an annual opinion, based upon and limited to the work performed, on the overall adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Council’s risk management, control and governance processes. The 
opinion should contribute to the Council's annual governance statement. 

17



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 l  3 
 

 
 it remains management’s responsibility to develop and maintain a sound system of risk management, internal 

control and governance, and for the prevention and detection of material errors, loss or fraud. The work of 
internal audit should not be seen as a substitute for management responsibility around the design and 
effective operation of these systems. 

1.3 Factors and findings which have informed our opinion 
Governance  

We have taken into consideration the governance and oversight related elements of each of the reviews undertaken 
as part of the 2018/19 internal audit plan. There is an appropriate governance framework in place and we have 
observed that the Governance and Audit Committee is effective in monitoring and challenging management and 
holding them to account.  

An audit of Corporate Governance, with a specific focus on the Council’s constitution, provided continued assurance 
over key areas of governance including the Council’s effectiveness and ability to react to and reach informed 
decisions. This audit resulted in a substantial assurance opinion. 

Risk Management 

A specific audit of the Council’s Risk Management arrangements was not scheduled for 2018/19. Therefore, our risk 
management opinion is informed by our observation of risk management systems and processes throughout the 
course of all audits within the Audit Plan. The Council has a Corporate Risk Register which details those risks which 
may impact on the achievement of the Council’s strategic objectives, and a Service Risk Register which documents 
risks identified at an operational level for each service area. The Council has utilised external support to ensure that its 
Corporate Risk Register is robust and reflective of the risk environment in which it operates. The Corporate Risk 
Register is reviewed twice a year by Assistant Directors and is presented to Governance and Audit Committee for 
approval twice a year. 

Internal Control 

We undertook 14 internal audit reviews in 2018/19 which resulted in an assurance opinion. There were eight reviews 
(57%) from which the Council can take substantial assurance; five reviews (36%) were carried out from which the 
Council can take reasonable assurance opinion and one audit (7%) from which the Council can take partial assurance.  

During the year we raised a total of 60 management actions across assurance and follow up reviews. Of the 60 
management actions raised: 29 were ‘medium’ priority and 31 were ‘low’ priority actions. There were no high priority 
actions raised. All management actions raised were agreed by management. 

One audit review was undertaken on an advisory basis. This process does not result in a formal audit opinion. This 
audit related to General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) Governance. 

A summary of internal audit work undertaken, and the resulting conclusions, is provided at appendix B. 

  

 

18



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 l  4 
 

2.1 Acceptance of internal audit management actions 
Management have agreed actions to address all of the findings reported by the internal audit service during 
2018/2019. 

2.2 Implementation of internal audit management actions 
Our follow up of the actions agreed to address previous years' internal audit findings showed that the Council had 
made reasonable progress in implementing the agreed actions across the two follow up reviews. Details of the follow 
up work is summarised below: 

Follow Up 1: Reasonable Progress 

Our Follow Up work concluded that the Council has demonstrated reasonable progress in implementing the agreed 
management actions. Of the twelve management actions reviewed, we confirmed that nine management actions had 
been fully implemented and three were considered to be ongoing. 
 
Follow Up 2: Reasonable Progress 

Our Follow Up work concluded that the Council has demonstrated reasonable progress in implementing the agreed 
management actions. Of the twenty five management actions reviewed, fifteen management actions had been fully 
implemented, five were considered to be ongoing and five actions had not been implemented. Revised completion 
dates have been agreed for all of the outstanding actions. 
 

2.3 Working with other assurance providers 
In forming our opinion we have not placed any direct reliance on other assurance providers. 

  

 

2 THE BASIS OF OUR INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 

As well as those headlines discussed at paragraph 1.3, the following areas have helped to inform 
our opinion. A summary of internal audit work undertaken, and the resulting conclusions, is 
provided at appendix B. 

19



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 l  5 
 

3.1 Conflicts of interest  
RSM has not undertaken any work or activity during 2018/2019 that would lead us to declare any conflict of interest. 

3.2 Conformance with internal auditing standards 
RSM affirms that our internal audit services are designed to conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS).  

Under PSIAS, internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment every five years. Our risk 
assurance service line commissioned an external independent review of our internal audit services in 2016 to provide 
assurance whether our approach meets the requirements of the International Professional Practices Framework 
(IPPF) published by the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) on which PSIAS is based.   

The external review concluded that ““there is a robust approach to the annual and assignment planning processes and 
the documentation reviewed was thorough in both terms of reports provided to audit committee and the supporting 
working papers.” RSM was found to have an excellent level of conformance with the IIA’s professional standards.  

The risk assurance service line has in place a quality assurance and improvement programme to ensure continuous 
improvement of our internal audit services. Resulting from the programme, there are no areas which we believe 
warrant flagging to your attention as impacting on the quality of the service we provide to you. 

3.3 Quality assurance and continual improvement 
To ensure that RSM remains compliant with the PSIAS framework we have a dedicated internal Quality Assurance 
Team who undertake a programme of reviews to ensure the quality of our audit assignments. This is applicable to all 
Heads of Internal Audit, where a sample of their clients will be reviewed. Any findings from these reviews are used to 
inform the training needs of our audit teams. 

This is in addition to any feedback we receive from our post assignment surveys, client feedback, appraisal processes 
and training needs assessments. 

 

 

 

3 OUR PERFORMANCE 

20



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 l  6 
 

The following shows the full range of opinions available to us within our internal audit methodology to provide you with 
context regarding your annual internal audit opinion. 

Annual opinions  Factors influencing our 
opinion 

The factors which are 
considered when influencing 
our opinion are: 

 inherent risk in the 
area being audited; 
 

 limitations in the 
individual audit 
assignments; 
 

 the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the 
risk management and 
/ or governance 
control framework; 
 

 the impact of 
weakness identified; 
 

 the level of risk 
exposure; and 
 

 the response to 
management actions 
raised and timeliness 
of actions taken. 

 

APPENDIX A: ANNUAL OPINIONS 

21



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 l  7 
 

 Assignment Executive lead Assurance level Actions agreed 

H M L 

Follow Up 1  
(1.18/19) 

Assistant Director -  
Resources 

Reasonable progress 0 1 2 

Pre-Application Fees  
(2.18/19) 

Assistant Director – Growth 

 

0 2 2 

NNDR  
(3.18/19) 

Assistant Director – 
Resources 

 

0 0 2 

 
General Data Protection 
(GDPR) Governance 
(4.18/19).  

Assistant Chief Executive, 
Transformation and 
Change 

Advisory 
8 management actions 

agreed 

CCTV  
(5.18/19) 

Assistant Director – 
Commercial and 
Operational 

 

0 0 1 

Recruitment and Retention 
(6.18/19) 

Assistant Chief Executive, 
Transformation and 
Change 

 

0 3 5 

Rent Collection and Arrears 
(7.18/19) 

Assistant Director – 
Resources 

 

0 3 0 

Land Charges 
(8.18/19) 

Assistant Director – Growth 

 

0 2 2 

APPENDIX B: SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT WORK 
COMPLETED 2018/2019 

22



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 l  8 
 

 Assignment Executive lead Assurance level Actions agreed 

H M L 

Members Allowances and 
Expenses (9.18/19) 

Head of Legal 

 

0 2 1 

Purchase Orders and 
Creditors (10.18/19) 

Assistant Director – 
Resources 

 

0 1 1 

Temporary Staff 
(11.18/19) 

Assistant Chief Executive, 
Transformation and 
Change 

 

0 2 3 

Construction Regulations 
(12.18/19) 

Assistant Director – Growth 
Assistant Director - 
Housing 

 

0 1 0 

Fire Safety 
(13.18/19) 

Assistant Director – 
Commercial and 
Operational 
Assistant Director –Growth 
Assistant Director – 
Housing 

0 5 2 

Payroll and Expenses 
(14.18/19) 
 

Assistant Director – 
Resources 

 

0 0 4 

Housing Benefits 
(15.18/19) 

Assistant Director - 
Resources 

 

0 0 2 

Corporate Governance 
(16.18/19) 

Head of Legal 

 

0 1 0 

Follow Up 2 
(17.18/19) 

Assistant Director - 
Resources 

Reasonable Progress 0 6 4 

23



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/2019 l  9 
 

 

We use the following levels of opinion classification within our internal audit reports. Reflecting the level of assurance 
the Council can take: 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council 
cannot take assurance that the controls upon which the 
Council relies to manage this risk are suitably 
designed, consistently applied or effective. 
Urgent action is needed to strengthen the control 
framework to manage the identified risk(s). 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take partial assurance that the controls to manage this 
risk are suitably designed and consistently applied. 
Action is needed to strengthen the control framework 
to manage the identified risk(s). 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take reasonable assurance that the controls in place to 
manage this risk are suitably designed and consistently 
applied. 
However, we have identified issues that need to be 
addressed in order to ensure that the control framework 
is effective in managing the identified risk(s). 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 
the Council relies to manage the identified risk(s) are 
suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 
effectively. 

24



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are 
not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. 
Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should not be 
taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We 
emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work should 
not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied upon to 
identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes 
set out herein. This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party 
wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any third 
party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in 
respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature 
which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 
 
This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save 
as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 
6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 
 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 

Suite A, 7th Floor, City Gate East, Tollhouse Hill, 
Nottingham. NG1 5FS 

T: 0115 964 4450   

M:07753 584993  

chris.williams@rsmuk.com 
 

 

 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL  
Follow Up 1 
FINAL 

Internal audit follow up report: 1.19/20 

29 May 2019 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no 
responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 

27



 

 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1 1.19/20 | 1 

CONTENTS 
1 Executive summary ...................................................................................................................................................... 2 
2 Findings and management actions .............................................................................................................................. 5 
Appendix A: Scope .......................................................................................................................................................... 12 
Appendix B: Actions completed ....................................................................................................................................... 13 
For further information contact ........................................................................................................................................ 15 
 

 

  

 

Debrief held 26 April 2019 Internal audit team Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 
Amjad Ali, Senior Manager  
Iain Daire, Assistant Manager 
Sheila Patel, Lead Auditor 
Kishan Patel, Internal Auditor 

Draft report issued 8 May 2019 

Responses received 29 May 2019 

Final report issued 29 May 2019 Client sponsor Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - 
Resources

Distribution Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - 
Resources  
Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk Officer

28



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1 1.19/20 | 2 

1.1 Introduction 
As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2019/20 we have undertaken a review to follow up progress 
made by you to implement the previously agreed management actions. The audits considered as part of the follow up 
review were: 

• 6.18/19 Recruitment and Retention; 

• 7.18/19 Rent Collection and Arrears; 

• 8.18/19 Land Charges; 

• 10.18/19 Purchase Orders and Creditors; 

• 11.18/19 Temporary Staff; 

• 12.18/19 Construction Regulations; 

• 13.18/19 Fire Safety; and 

• 14.18/19 Payroll and Expenses. 
 

The 34 management actions considered in this review comprised of 17 'Medium' and 17 'Low'. Concentrating on the 
actions classified as 'medium', the focus of this review was, to provide assurance that all actions previously made have 
been adequately implemented.  

1.2 Conclusion 
Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report and in line with our definitions set out in Appendix 
A, in our opinion South Kesteven District Council has demonstrated reasonable progress in implementing agreed 
management actions. 

We have made new management actions where appropriate; these are detailed in section 2 of this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

29



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 3 

The following graph highlights the progress made on the actions that have been followed up:  

 

 

1.3 Action tracking 
Action tracking enhances an organisation’s risk management and governance processes. It provides management 
with a method to record the implementation status of actions made by assurance providers, whilst allowing the Audit 
Committee to monitor actions taken by management. 

Action tracking is undertaken by South Kesteven District Council’s management on a regular basis, with an update 
provided to the Audit Committee at each meeting. 

 

 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Payroll and Expenses

Fire Safety

Construction Regulations

Temporary Staff

Purchase Orders and Creditors

Land Charges

Rent Collection and Arrears

Recruitment and Retention

Implemented (Incl Superseded)

Not implemented

In progress

30



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 4 

1.4 Progress on actions  

Implementation 
status by review 

Number 
of 

actions 
agreed 

Status of management actions
Implemented

(1) 
Implementation 

ongoing 
(2) 

Not 
implemented

(3) 

Superseded 
(4) 

Not yet 
due (5)

Confirmed 
as 

completed 
or no 
longer 

necessary 
(1) +(4)

6.18/19 Recruitment 
and Retention 8 6 0 2 0 0 6 

7.18/19 Rent 
Collection and 
Arrears 

3 2 0 1 0 0 2 

8.18/19 Land 
Charges 4 3 1 0 0 0 3 

10.18/19 Purchase 
Orders and Creditors 2 1 1 0 0 0 1 

11.18/19 Temporary 
Staff 5 3 0 2 0 0 3 

12.18/19 
Construction 
Regulations 

1 1 0 0 0 0 1 

13.18/19 Fire Safety 7 3 2 2 0 0 3 

14.18/19 Payroll and 
Expenses 4 2 2 0 0 0 2 

Implementation 
status by 

management action 
priority 

Number 
of 

actions 
agreed 

Status of management actions   

Implemented
(1) 

Implementation 
ongoing 

(2) 

Not 
implemented

(3) 

Superseded 
(4) 

Not yet 
due (5)

Confirmed 
as 

completed 
or no 
longer 

necessary 
(1) +(4)

Low 17 12 2 3 0 0 12

Medium 17 9 4 4 0 0 9

Totals 34 21 6 7 0 0 21

31



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 5 

2 FINDINGS AND MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 
This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included only those actions graded as 2 and 3. Each action followed up has been categorised in line with 
the following: 

Status Detail 
1 The entire action has been fully implemented. 
2 The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 
3 The action has not been implemented. 
4 The action has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 
5 The action is not yet due. 

 

ASSIGNMENT TITLE: 6.18/19 Recruitment and Retention
Ref Management action Original 

date 
Original 
priority

Audit finding Current 
status 

Updated management action Priority 
issued

Revised 
date

Owner 
responsible 

1 Recruitment procedures 
will be condensed into a 
single document and a 
flowchart will be 
produced to show the 
process from start to 
finish. 

31 October 
2018 

Low Through discussion with the HR 
Department it was confirmed that 
this management action has not 
yet been implemented. The 
Council has introduced a new HR 
module on their system, and as a 
result procedure notes are 
currently being revised to reflect 
this. Subsequently, a flowchart will 
be produced to highlight the 
recruitment process from start to 
end. 

3 Recruitment procedures will be 
condensed into a single document 
and a flowchart will be produced to 
show the process from start to finish. 

Low 31 July 
2019 

Head of 
Organisational 
Development 

2 Recruitment training will 
be delivered to all staff 
with Line Management 
responsibilities and 
refreshed on a cyclical 
basis to communicate 
any changes in 
legislation, hiring 

31 
December 

2018 

Medium Through discussion with the HR 
Department it was confirmed that 
this management action has not 
yet been implemented. The 
Council has introduced a new HR 
module on their system, and as a 
result procedure notes are 
currently being revised to reflect 
this. Subsequently, recruitment 

3 Recruitment training will be delivered 
to all staff with Line Management 
responsibilities and refreshed on a 
cyclical basis to communicate any 
changes in legislation, hiring 
practices, changes to policies, etc.  

Medium 31 July 
2019 

Head of 
Organisational 
Development 

32



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 6 

practices, changes to 
policies, etc.    

The frequency of 
refresher training will be 
documented in the 
Recruitment and 
Selection Policy. 

training will be delivered to all staff 
with line management 
responsibilities. 

The frequency of refresher training 
will be documented in the 
Recruitment and Selection Policy. 

ASSIGNMENT TITLE: 7.18/19 Rent Collection and Arrears
Ref Management action Original 

date 
Original 
priority

Audit finding Current 
status 

Updated management action Priority 
issued

Revised 
date

Owner 
responsible 

3 a) The date the rent 
increase letter is issued 
to the tenant will be 
recorded in full on the 
letter for example 3 
March 2018.  

b) To ensure that 28 
days’ notice is given, the 
rent increase letters will 
be issued to the tenant 
by the end of February. 

28 
February 

2019 

Medium Discussion with the Benefits 
Manager established that the 
council tax and rent increases 
were approved by the Council on 
the first Thursday in February 
2019 and as a result for 2018/19 
rent increase the rent increase 
letters were sent on 1 March' 2019 
thereby giving 28 days’ notice, 
however, it was noted the date on 
the letter was recorded as March 
2019.    

There is a risk that where the full 
date, for example 3 March 2019, is 
not recorded on the rent increase 
letter, tenants are not able to 
confirm that at least 28 days’ 
notice has been given. 

3 a) The date the rent increase letter is 
issued to the tenant will be recorded 
in full on the letter for example 3 
March 2019.    

b) Currently the Council approves the 
council tax increase and rent 
increases on the first Thursday in 
February. In order to comply with 
legal requirement for the rent 
increase letter to be issued giving at 
least 28 notice, the Council will 
consider moving the date of the 
approval of the council tax and rent 
increase to allow for the required 
notice period to be given. 

Medium 28 
February 

2020 

Revenues and 
Benefits 
Manager 

ASSIGNMENT TITLE: 8.18/19 Land Charges 
Ref Management action Original 

date 
Original 
priority

Audit finding Current 
status 

Updated management action Priority 
issued

Revised 
date

Owner 
responsible 

4 Changes made to the 
register will be 
independently reviewed 
to supporting 
documentation and 
checked for accuracy by 

30 
September 

2018 

Medium Review of the Registrations 
Spreadsheet confirmed that it has 
been updated post audit to include 
the following:  

2 We will ensure changes made to the 
register are independently reviewed 
to supporting documentation and 
checked for accuracy by another 

Medium 31 August 
2019 

Head of 
Development 
Management 

33



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 7 

another member of the 
team, after the change 
has been made. 
Evidence of the 
independent review 
taking place will be 
documented on the 
Registrations 
Spreadsheet with the 
name of the person who 
made the change and 
details of reviewer and 
date. 

a) 'Person Registered Date' and b) 
'Person Checked Date'. However 
through review of the Registrations 
Spreadsheet it was noted that not 
all registrations documented had 
been independently checked, 
therefore posing a risk of 
inaccurate changes being made to 
the register. 

member of the team, after the 
change has been made. 

ASSIGNMENT TITLE: 10.18/19 Purchase Orders and Creditors
Ref Management action Original 

date 
Original 
priority

Audit finding Current 
status 

Updated management action Priority 
issued

Revised 
date

Owner 
responsible 

5 We will implement a new 
intelligent scanning 
software which will 
streamline the 
purchasing process and 
identify repeat offenders 
of retrospective 
purchase orders.   
Repeat offenders will be 
reminded of the 
importance of ensuring a 
purchase order is raised 
prior to the ordering of 
goods or services from 
suppliers. 

31 March 
2019 

Medium Finance are currently working at 
reducing the number of 
retrospective purchase orders 
being raised. New scanning 
software was introduced middle of 
December 2018. This allows for 
scanning of all invoices onto the 
system. Budget Holders were 
reminded to ensure purchase 
orders are raised prior to the 
goods being ordered.     

Reports are available from the 
system for monitoring and it is 
anticipated that by end of June 
2019 the monthly monitoring 
reports can be used to identify 
repeat offenders and an escalation 
process is implemented. 

2 a) Monthly monitoring reports will be 
produced and reviewed to identify 
repeat offenders.  

b) Repeat offenders will be reminded 
of the importance of ensuring a 
purchase order is raised prior to the 
ordering of goods or services from 
suppliers. 

c) An escalation process will be 
implemented. 

Medium 28 June 
2019 

Head of 
Finance 

34



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 8 

ASSIGNMENT TITLE: 11.18/19 Temporary Staff
Ref Management action Original 

date 
Original 
priority 

Audit finding Current 
status 

Updated management action Priority 
issued

Revised 
date

Owner 
responsible 

6 We will update the 
guidance on temporary 
staff to state the process 
for placing orders and 
making payments for 
temporary staff. 

30 
November 

2018 

Low At the time of audit no evidence 
was provided to confirm this 
management action has been 
progressed or implemented and it 
has therefore been reiterated. 

3 We will update the guidance on 
temporary staff to state the process 
for placing orders and making 
payments for temporary staff. 

Low 31 July 
2019 

Head of 
Organisational 
Development 

7 We will send an email 
reminder to all staff to 
remind them of the 
process for employing 
temporary staff and 
inform them that 
temporary workers are 
not to be appointed until 
an approved Agency 
Request and Extension 
form and an evaluation 
checklist is in place and 
fully completed. 

30 
November 

2018 

Medium Through discussion with the HR 
Department it was confirmed that 
reminders were issued to staff 
members to ensure an Agency 
Request and Extension form and 
evaluation checklist was in place 
prior to the hiring of any temporary 
staff.   

A sample of five temporary staff 
hires were selected and tested. In 
all five instances an Agency 
Request and Extension Form was 
found to have been maintained on 
file.  Four instances were noted 
where an Evaluation Checklist had 
been fully completed and 
maintained on file for each 
temporary staff member. However, 
one instance was noted where an 
Evaluation Checklist had not been 
completed.  

Additionally, evidence was not 
provided to confirm an email 
reminder was sent to all staff to 
remind them of the process for 
employing temporary staff and the 
relevant forms to be completed 
prior to appointment. 

3 We will ensure an Evaluation 
Checklist is in place and fully 
completed for the appointment of all 
temporary staff. 

Medium 31 July 
2019 

Head of 
Organisational 
Development 

35



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 9 

ASSIGNMENT TITLE: 13.18/19 Fire Safety 
Ref Management action Original 

date 
Original 
priority 

Audit finding Current 
status 

Updated management action Priority 
issued

Revised 
date

Owner 
responsible 

8 Emergency lighting and 
fire alarms will be 
checked in accordance 
with the Fire Safety 
Arrangements and Fire 
Log Book. Fire 
extinguishers will be 
serviced in accordance 
with the schedule and 
records retained. 

31 
December 

2018 

Medium On testing it was noted that the 
emergency lighting tests at 
Council offices St Peters Hill is 
undertaken every six months and 
the servicing annually. Emergency 
Lighting tests at four other Council 
buildings are being undertaken 
either six monthly or annually.    
This is not consistent with 
requirements stated in the Fire 
Safety Arrangements and Fire Log 
Book.  

Testing confirmed that the testing 
of the emergency lighting at 
sample of 10 sheltered housing 
schemes was being undertaken 
monthly. 

2 Emergency lighting will be checked 
in accordance with the Fire Safety 
Arrangements and Fire Log Book. 

Medium 28 June 
2019 

Assets and 
Estates 
Manager – 
General Fund 
Assets 

9 All staff will be required 
to and will undertake fire 
safety training on an 
annual basis as per the 
Fire Log Book. 

30 
November 

2018 

Low All staff are required to undertake 
refresher fire awareness training 
annually.  

The system automatically sends 
out a reminder. On receipt of the 
notification of new starters from 
HR the new starters are added to 
the online training system.   

On review of a system generated 
report on the fire awareness 
training it was noted that:  

a) Refresher fire awareness 
training is not always being 
undertake annually by staff;    

b) Monitoring is not being 
undertaken to ensure that the fire 
awareness training is being 

3 a) All staff will be required to and will 
undertake refresher fire awareness 
training on an annual basis as per 
the Fire Log Book.  

b) Monitoring arrangements will be 
put into place to ensure that the 
training is being undertaken and on a 
timely basis.   

c) A regular reconciliation will be 
performed of the new starters 
recorded onto the e-learning system 
and new starters to ensure that all 
have been recorded. 

Medium 31 July 
2019 

Health and 
Safety 
Corporate 
Compliance 
and Training 
Officer 

36



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 10 

completed and on a timely basis; 
and     

c) A reconciliation is not 
undertaken are regular intervals to 
ensure that all new staff have 
been notified to the Health and 
Safety Corporate Compliance and 
Training Officer.   

There is a risk that where the 
refresher fire awareness training is 
not undertaken as required, in 
event of a fire staff may not be 
aware of actions to be undertaken.  

There is also a risk that staff may 
not be provided with fire 
awareness training. 

10 The Council is already 
working to identify a 
contractor to undertake 
the intrusive property 
surveys. A suitable 
contractor will be 
sourced as soon as 
possible to enable the 
surveys to commence.  
The Stay Put policy will 
be amended for each 
property based on the 
findings of the survey. 

31 May 
2019 

Medium Discussion with the Head of 
Improvement and Repairs and the 
Senior Project Development and 
Improvement Officer established 
that in-house operatives have 
been trained by an external 
contractor.  At the time of the 
audit, the survey work on the 
sheltered housing accommodation 
and flatlets with communal 
facilities had just commenced. It is 
anticipated that the survey work 
will be completed within the next 
couple of months.    

On completion of this work, the 
Stay Put policy will be amended 
for each property based on the 
findings of the survey. 

2 On completion of the surveys of the 
sheltered accommodation and flatlets 
with communal facilities, the Stay Put 
policy will be amended for each 
property based on the findings of the 
survey. 

Medium 30 
September 

2019 

Head of 
Improvement 
and Repairs 

Housing 
Services 
Team Leader 

11 FRAs are reviewed on 
an annual basis for all 
properties where one is 
required based on the 

31 March 
2019 

Medium Surveys are currently being 
undertaken of the sheltered 
accommodation and the 
communal areas of flatlets. Fire 

3 a) Fire Risk Assessments will be 
undertaken on completion of the 
surveys.   

Medium 30 
September 

2019 

Head of 
Improvement 
and Repairs  

37



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 11 

structure and layout of 
the property. Where the 
use or layout of the 
building changes 
requiring a new FRA, 
these will be carried out 
and any arising actions 
implemented. 

risk assessments will be 
undertaken on completion of the 
surveys. 

b) Going forward the Fire Risk 
assessments will be reviewed 
annually for all properties where one 
is required based on the structure 
and layout of the property.  

c) Where the use or layout of the 
building changes requiring a new 
Fire Risk Assessment, these will be 
carried out and any arising actions 
implemented. 

Housing 
Services 
Team Leader 

ASSIGNMENT TITLE: 14.18/19 Payroll and Expenses
Ref Management action Original 

date 
Original 
priority

Audit finding Current 
status 

Updated management action Priority 
issued

Revised 
date

Owner 
responsible 

12 The Expenses Policy will 
be reviewed and 
updated to reflect current 
working practices. 

28 
February 

2019 

Low The Expenses Policy is currently 
under review. There is a risk that 
up to date guidance is not in place 
for claiming of expenses incurred 
by staff. 

2 The Expenses Policy will be 
reviewed and updated to reflect 
current working practices. 

Low 31 May 
2019 

Head of 
Finance 

13 A reminder will be issued 
to all staff to ensure that 
a corresponding receipt 
is uploaded onto the 
payroll system when 
making any expense 
claims. 

31 
December 

2018 

Low The Expenses Policy is currently 
under review as a result a 
reminder is yet to be issued to all 
staff to ensure that a 
corresponding receipt is uploaded 
onto the payroll system when 
making any expenses claims. 

2 A reminder will be issued to all staff 
to ensure that a corresponding 
receipt is uploaded onto the payroll 
system when making any expense 
claims. 

Low 31 May 
2019 

Head of 
Finance 

38



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 12 

Scope of the review 
The internal audit assignment has been scoped to provide assurance on how South Kesteven District Council 
manages the following objective:   

Objective of the area under review 

To meet internal auditing standards, and to provide assurance on action taken to address management actions 
previously agreed by management. 

 

When planning the audit, the following areas for consideration and limitations were agreed: 

Areas for consideration: 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan we will review the 34 (17 'Medium' and 17 'Low') management 
actions agreed in the following Internal Audit reviews: 

• 6.18/19 Recruitment and Retention; 

• 7.18/19 Rent Collection and Arrears; 

• 8.18/19 Land Charges; 

• 10.18/19 Purchase Orders and Creditors; 

• 11.18/19 Temporary Staff; 

• 12.18/19 Construction Regulations;  

• 13.18/19 Fire Safety; and 

• 14.18/19 Payroll and Expenses. 

Limitations to the scope of the audit assignment:  

• Detailed testing will only be carried out on high and medium priority management actions; 

• We will obtain a management update in relation to low priority management actions, but no detailed testing will 
be carried out; 

• We will not review the whole control framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing 
assurance on the entire risk and control framework of these areas; 

• Testing will be completed, where appropriate, on a sample basis over the period since actions were 
implemented or controls enhanced; and 

• Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist. 

APPENDIX A: SCOPE 

39



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 13 

From the testing conducted during this review we have found the following actions to have been fully implemented and 
are now closed: 

 

APPENDIX B: ACTIONS COMPLETED 

Assignment title Management actions
6.18/19 Recruitment and 
Retention  

The review date and the next review date will be recorded within the Recruitment and 
Selection Policy to evidence that it has been reviewed. 

6.18/19 Recruitment and 
Retention 

The HR Team will not advertise job vacancies or undertake shortlisting until a Staff 
Requisition form has been fully completed and appropriately authorised.  

6.18/19 Recruitment and 
Retention 

The HR Team will ensure that all corresponding recruitment documentation, including 
the job advert are retained centrally. 

6.18/19 Recruitment and 
Retention 

Short listing will be undertaken by a minimum of two people, and shortlisting sheets will 
be kept on file in line with retention periods. 

6.18/19 Recruitment and 
Retention 

Employment contracts will not be entered into until two satisfactory references have 
been obtained and background checks fully completed as required by the Recruitment 
and Selection Procedure. 

6.18/19 Recruitment and 
Retention 

Recruitment documentation will be retained centrally by the HR Team for six months 
before being deleted, as per the retention guidelines. 

7.18/19 Rent Collection and 
Arrears  

The Council has reviewed its arrangements for undertaking appropriate arrears 
management actions to ensure that arrears cases are reviewed on a more regular basis. 

7.18/19 Rent Collection and 
Arrears 

All the relevant staff will be reminded to ensure that the write offs are authorised in 
accordance to the delegated authorities set out in the Corporate Debt Management 
Policy.  

8.18/19 Land Charges  We will produce an overarching procedure note to provide guidance and an overview of 
the whole process of managing land charges. The procedure note will cover all stages 
including entering and responding to search queries and removing registrations and 
charges from the register. 

8.18/19 Land Charges  We will hold a team meeting to review the current filing system and implement a system 
to be able to keep track of notifications received.  As soon as a new registration 
notification is received this will be filed in a dedicated folder in order of date received. 
When the notifications are reviewed, any which are identified as being incomplete will be 
filed in a separate folder so that they are not mixed up with complete notifications which 
are awaiting registration.   

We will re-introduce the use of the tracking spreadsheet and use this to keep track of 
registration and removal notifications which have been received and the progress made 
in entering them on to the system. 

8.18/19 Land Charges  We will continue to chase the IT and Finance Teams to review, approve and update the 
website with the current fees and to clarify the wording of the web page. 

40



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 1  1.19/20  | 14 

10.18/19 Purchase Orders 
and Creditors 

We will ensure that all credit control account reconciliations are prepared and reviewed 
in a timely manner following month end. All credit control account reconciliations will be 
dated by both the preparer and reviewer.  

11.18/19 Temporary Staff  IR35 checks will be undertaken and evidence will be kept on file for all temporary staff 
appointed.  

Management Comment: IR35 checks have now been completed for the three cases 
where no evidence was available. No risks have been identified.  

11.18/19 Temporary Staff  We will update the Agency Request and Extension form to require staff to provide a 
clear, explicit reason as to why existing resources cannot be used rather than just 
ticking a box, and to document the actions they have taken to identify any alternative 
resources which could be used. 

11.18/19 Temporary Staff  We have recently implemented a new process whereby agency appointments are 
required to be reviewed at 12 weekly intervals. The review will consider whether a 
temporary appointment is still the most suitable option and the reasons why, or whether 
alternative options have become more suitable in terms of value for money.   

The OD Team will regularly review the Register of Temporary Staff to identify any 
appointments which have exceeded 12 weeks - the OD Team will then confirm that an 
updated Agency Request and Extension form has been appropriately approved. Any 
unapproved extensions will be notified to the relevant Director. 

1.18/19 Construction 
Regulations 

We will ensure that our Project Check Sheet guidance notes, including the CDM 
information, are reviewed and updated where necessary. We will also establish a three-
yearly cycle to ensure future reviews are scheduled and carried out. 

13.18/19 Fire Safety The Facilities Team Leader will implement a spreadsheet to log actions arising from 
FRAs undertaken on general properties.  

The log will be monitored to track progress against each action and to identify 
outstanding actions. 

13.18/19 Fire Safety An accurate list of trained users of the evacuation chair will be displayed by all chairs. If 
trained staff undertake a conflicting role such as becoming a Fire Warden, they will be 
removed from the list of trained evacuation chair users.  

Management will retain a record of all staff who have been trained on the evacuation 
chair and a practice session will be undertaken every three months and a record of 
training and practice sessions. 

PEEPs will be reviewed every six months to ensure that they remain fit for purpose and 
up to date.  

1.18/19 Fire Safety Fire drills will be conducted at least annually. The completion of the fire drill will be 
documented on form F7 which is available in the Fire Log Book.  

14.18/19 Payroll and 
Expenses  

The Payroll Team will include dates when signing contract changes forms.  

14.18/19 Payroll and 
Expenses 

Monthly summary reports for starters, leavers and amendments will be reviewed, signed 
and maintained on file by the Payroll Team.  

41



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are 
not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. 
Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact. This report, or our work, should not be taken 
as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise 
that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied 
upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be relied upon to identify all 
circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes 
set out herein. This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party 
wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any third 
party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in 
respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature 
which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 
 
This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save 
as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 
6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 
 

 
Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

Chris.Williams@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07753 584993  

 

Amjad Ali, Senior Manager 

Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07800 617139 

 

Iain Daire, Assistant Manager 

Iain.Daire@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07528 970048 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

42



Governance & Audit 
Committee 
21 June 2019

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Cabinet Member for Finance

        

Outturn Position Report 2018/19

This report provides Governance and Audit Committee with the detail of the Council’s outturn 
position for the financial year 2018/19. The report covers the following areas:

• General Fund Revenue Budget (Section 4)
• Housing Revenue Account Budget (Section 5)
• Capital Programmes – General Fund and HRA (Section 6)

Report Author

Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance

 01476 406208

 Alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - Resources 6 June 2019

Approved by: Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - Resources 7 June 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 11 June 2019

Recommendations to the decision maker 

Governance and Audit Committee is asked to: 
1. Review and approve the Revenue and Capital Outturn report and associated 

appendices for 2018/19.
2. Approve the budget carry forwards shown at paragraph 4.5 and reserve 

movements shown at section 7 in the report.
3. Approve the Capital slippages from the 2018/19 Capital Programme as detailed in 

the report and appendix C & E.

43

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


4. Approve the change to the Regeneration reserve policy to include financing any 
feasibility work costs in respect of property acquisition and development.

5. Approve the creation of a specific reserve of £100k to fund the crowd funding 
initiative from the year end working balance.

44



1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Council’s Revenue and Capital 

Outturn 2018/19 of both the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account.  
It covers:

 Revenue outturn 2018/19
 Capital outturn 2018/19
 Commentary on the revenue and capital outturn
 Commentary and review of reserves and a reserves statement

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview 
and Scrutiny

2.1 The outturn report details the information relating to the 2018/19 financial year 
and is presented to the Committee for consideration and approval.  This is in 
accordance with the terms of reference for the Committee.  The report will also 
be presented to Cabinet at their meeting on 9 July 2019.  During the year 
regular budget monitoring and management reports have been presented at 
the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee and members have considered 
and debated the variances during this period.  This outturn report is the 
culmination of the in-year reports.

3 General Fund Revenue Budget
3.1 The 2018/19 original general revenue budget approved by Council on 1 March 

2018 was set at £17.161m. Subsequent approved amendments to the budget 
framework have been included and these are summarised below. These 
changes increased the 2018/19 budget to £19.502m. For the purposes of the 
outturn variance analysis, the budget carry forwards have been removed from 
this which reduces the budget for comparative purposes to £18.798m.

Table 1

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000
June 2018 2017/18 Budget Carry forward and set asides 694
July 2018 Environment SK 40
September 2018 Deliver SK 100
November 2018 One off costs arising from the Senior 

Management Restructure*
866

June 2018 Stamford Arts Centre Bequest 33

January 2019 Allocation of Business Rates Income 459
February 2019 Intelligent Automation project 150

*This is the one-off cost incurred following the implementation of the new senior management 
arrangements.  The full year saving of the new structure will be £300k for the General Fund 
and the payback period is 2 years and 10 months. 

45



3.2 This report provides the Governance and Audit Committee with the detail of the 
Council’s outturn position for the financial year 2018/19. In order to comply with 
International Financial Reporting Standards a number of technical accounting 
entries are required to be made which can create significant variances.  The 
report attempts to ensure that, through explanation and presentation, the final 
account figures can be reconciled back to the original budget set by Council.

3.3 General Fund Revenue Account 2018/19 details can be found at table 2 and 
the variance narrative is provided at section 4.4 and at Appendix A.

3.4 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) details can be found at table 7 and the 
variance narrative is provided at section 5.3 and at Appendix B.

3.5 General Fund Capital Programme has an outturn of £16.05m compared with 
an updated budget of £25.478m.  Details of the full programme and additional 
slippage are contained within paragraph 6.3 of the report and at Appendix C 
and Appendix D.

3.6 The Housing Investment Programme (HIP) shows an outturn position and 
updated slippage of £4.949m compared to a revised budget of £10.004m. 
Details of the full programme and additional slippage are contained within 
section 6.8 of the report and at Appendix E and Appendix F. 

3.7 Commentary and review of reserves and a reserves statement at Appendix G 
and H.

4 GENERAL FUND (REVENUE) VARIANCE ANALYSIS
4.1 The forecast outturn position as at Quarter 3 was reported to Growth Overview 

and Scrutiny on 13 February 2019.  At this time, the forecast variance on the 
total cost of provision of service was £688k. The outturn position is £686k and 
is shown at line 12 in table 2 below.  The details of significant variances are 
provided below in section 4.4.  It is important to note that Council approved on 
31 January 2019 the use of the business rates gain (arising from the 100% pilot 
scheme) to fund towards the balancing of the 2018/19 financial year.  

4.2 The Directorate headings showing budget and outturn are detailed in Table 2 
below:

46



Table 2

Directorate

2018/19 
Original 
Budget 
£’000

2018/19 
Revised 

Budget (less 
Budget carry 

forwards)  
£’000

2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£’000

2018/19 
Variance to 

revised 
budget 
£’000

1 Commercial 
and Operational

6,296 6,398 6,554 156

2 Growth 6,544 6,810 6,878 68

3 Resources 4,321 5,590 5,324 (266)

4 Removal of 
Accounting 
Adjustments

1,346 1,346

5 Net Cost of 
Services Total

17,161 18,798 20,102 1,304

6 Interest and 
Investment 
Income & 
Interest Payable

(198) (198) (327) (129)

7 Minimum 
Revenue 
Provision

247 247 154 (93)

8 Depreciation (3,400) (3,400) (4,099) (699)

9 Local Council 
Tax Support 
Grant

22 22 22 0

10 Reserves (2,206) (3,524) (3,237) 287

11 Grants (151) (276) (260) 16

12 Total Cost of 
Provision of 
Service

11,475 11,669 12,355 686

13 Business Rates (4,400) (4,400) (4,423) (23)

14 Business Rates 
Growth and s31 
grants

(250) (517) (2,430) (1,913)

47



Directorate

2018/19 
Original 
Budget 
£’000

2018/19 
Revised 

Budget (less 
Budget carry 

forwards)  
£’000

2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£’000

2018/19 
Variance to 

revised 
budget 
£’000

15 Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit

321 321 321 0

16 Transfer to 
Regeneration 
Reserve

713 713

17 Transfer to 
Reserves

610 610

18 Council Tax (7,146) (7,146) (7,146) 0

19 Working 
balance transfer

73 0 (73)

20 Total funding (11,475) (11,669) (12,355) (686)

21 Total Variance 
(to)/from 
reserves

0 0 0 0

Notes for table 2:
 Line 4 – removal of accounting entries specifically IAS19 (employee 

pension), Revenue Expenditure Financed from Capital under Statute 
(REFCUS), asset revaluations and capital grants received. These are 
detailed in the table below

Table 3

Removal of Accounting Adjustments £’000
IAS 19 (employee pension) (1,086)
REFCUS 577
Asset revaluations (352)
Capital Grants 2,207
Total 1,346

 
 Line 5 – this line shows the net overall expenditure at cost centre level
 Line 6 - Additional interest income has been earned through investment of 

increased cash balances and interest rate changes.

 Line 8 - this is a non-cash item to reflect the financing costs of holding assets 

48



 Lines 16-17 – These adjustments were in accordance with Council approval 
on 31 January 2019.

Earmarked Reserves
4.3 The table below details the projected movements to specific reserves as part 

of the outturn analysis.  These movements are in respect of grants and 
contributions that are required to fund specific expenditure items in the 
2019/20 financial year.

Table 4

Reserve/Grant Heading Contribution 
to Reserve

£’000
Specific Grants:
Flexible Homelessness Support 
Grant
Individual Electoral Registration 
New Burdens Grant
MHCLG EU Exit Preparation
Rogue Landlord funding
MHCLG Controlling Migration
MHCLG transparency code new 
burdens
Urban Gym-Grantham Rotary
Welfare Reform
 

178

5
30
17
22
31

8
20

100

Total 411

Summary of Significant Variances

4.4 In order to understand outturn at service level which is shown in Table 2 
(lines 1 – 3) the following commentary provides a summary of the significant 
variances by Directorate. 

49



Table 5

Variances > £20k by Directorate
Variance 

£’000
One Off or 
Recurring 

Commercial and Operational
Fuel – The average national increase in fuel prices has been 
above the 5% level that was budgeted for.  Additional provision 
has been factored in for future years. The overspend is funded 
from earmarked reserves as shown in Appendix A.

80 Additional 
resources 
allocated 
2019/20

Vehicle Repairs - An increase in the number of external repairs 
due to the capacity of the workshop and specialist nature of the 
works required.  During 2019/20 a review of the workshop will be 
undertaken to determine the future resource implications

59 Additional 
resources 
allocated 
2019/20

Flood Prevention - Allocated funding to undertake additional 
projects during 2018/19 was no longer required since the 
programme of works has been finalised.

(48) One Off

Private Sector Housing – There are a number of income and 
expenditure items under this service heading that fall within the 
category of REFCUS (revenue expenditure funded from capital 
under statute).  These items specifically relate to discretionary 
facilities grants and housing assistance grants, these have been 
removed at line 4 at table 2.

(615) One Off

Private Sector Housing – Specific costs incurred under this 
heading related to capitalisation of salaries

(61) One Off

Environmental Services - A reduction in the use of contractors 
has resulted in a saving against the budget.   

(30) One Off

Big Clean - The second permanent Big Clean crew were not 
recruited until June which has resulted in an underspend.  
However, all of the outcomes were delivered during the financial 
year therefore this represents an efficiency saving

(40) One Off

Street Scene – Additional income has been received for 
amenities collection service which was not anticipated.

(36) Recurring

Green Waste Collection –Additional income has been received, 
with 28,074 households renewing their subscription for 2018/19 
and 914 new households joining the service throughout the year. 

(48) This 
increase 

has been 
built in 

2019/20
Accident repairs costs have been incurred during the year, these 
costs will be funded from the insurance reserve as shown in 
Appendix A.

28 One Off

Waste and Recycling – There is an overspend on wages due to 
staff absence with posts needing to be covered to meet health 
and safety requirements and an overspend on pensions due to 

53 One Off

50



Variances > £20k by Directorate
Variance 

£’000
One Off or 
Recurring 

auto-enrolment, the pension costs of these posts have been 
budgeted in 2019/20 
Pension costs for accounting entry IAS19 are included within the 
Directorate, these have been removed at line 4 at table 2.

897 One Off

Total 239

Growth

Income from Commercial Properties – New opportunities are 
being actively pursued, however no further investment purchases 
have been made during the year therefore the income budget 
has not been met.

93 The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Cinema Development - The updated timeline of this scheme has 
resulted in the rental income from the retail units not being 
achieved. 

30 The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Planning and Pre-planning fees – this income has increased due 
to an increase in the number of planning applications received 
during the year

(99) One Off

Planning Policy – the district’s local plan inspection was during 
May 2019 which resulted in an underspend which is offset by a 
reduced reserve movement

(79) One Off

Arts Centres – The budgeted level of income from room hire was 
not achieved in 2018/19 due to a lower level of bookings than 
anticipated.  

31 One Off

Christmas Lights – Additional investment in Grantham town 
centre lights.  This will be funded from the Special Expense Area 
meaning that this is funded from the precept collected for the 
special expense area of Grantham.

35 One Off

Council Offices - Loss of rental income due to a tenant not 
renewing their lease.

43 The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Council Offices - In year changes to lease arrangement at The 
Maltings has resulted in a saving against the budget.

(26) The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Car Parks - A change in enforcement hours has resulted in a 
reduction in expenditure

(26) One Off

Car Parks - The budgeted increase in car parking income is 
currently not being achieved.  There has been a review of car 
parks that has resulted in some additional capacity being created 
during the year although there has been no material increase in 
income. The income budget in 2019/20 has been reduced.

283 The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Leisure Centres - Additional in year equipment and repairs costs 
at Deepings, Stamford and Grantham has resulted in an over 
spend

40 One Off

Utilities – Additional pricing increases during the winter months 
has increased costs for electricity in 2018/19

33 Recurring – 
potentially 

a budget 

51



Variances > £20k by Directorate
Variance 

£’000
One Off or 
Recurring 

pressure 
for 2019/20

Homelessness - There has been a significant rise in demand for 
emergency accommodation resulting in an over spend. Further 
review work is currently being undertaken to mitigate future 
costs.

55 One Off

Pension costs for accounting entry IAS19 are included within the 
Directorate These have been removed at line 4 at table 2.

626 One Off

Accounting entries for asset revaluations are included within the 
Directorate. These have been removed at line 4 at table 2.

362 One Off

Accounting entries for capital grants received in 2018/19 are 
included within the Directorate, these have been removed at line 
4 at table 1.

(2,207) One Off

Shop Front Schemes - There are a number of income and 
expenditure items under this service heading that fall within the 
category of REFCUS (revenue expenditure funded from capital 
under statute).  These have been removed at line 4 at table 2.

38 One Off

Depreciation – Accounting entries for additional depreciation is 
included within the Directorate. This has been removed at line 8.

756 One Off

Total 138
Resources
Income generation from shared service opportunities – a number 
of planning policy officers are seconded to Rutland CC; additional 
opportunities to share have been discounted resulting in the 
income target not being met.

113 One Off

Procurement – new initiatives have been implemented but due to 
the timelines involved there has been a delay in the achievement 
of these savings and these are now expected to be realised in 
2019/20

180 One Off

Service reviews – the review programme will be completed in 
2019/20

50 One Off

Business Rates – Reassessment costs have been incurred 
during 2018/19 which will be offset by future additional NDR 
income

46 One Off

Corporate consultancy – these savings were not achieved during 
2018/19.

30 One Off

Agency – the level of vacancies in key posts throughout the year 
has meant that the saving will not be delivered.

75 One Off

‘White space’ initiative – this initiative has not been implemented 
due to alternative options being reviewed which has resulted in 
the budget savings

(70) One Off

Utilities –base budgets had already been reduced in line with 
costs prior to this bid being submitted therefore these savings are 
not deliverable

50 One Off

Removal of vacant posts – savings from the removal of vacant 
posts are reflected in service budgets.

45 One Off

52



Variances > £20k by Directorate
Variance 

£’000
One Off or 
Recurring 

Corporate overtime and call out payments – the saving built into 
the budget has not been achieved due to the overtime and call 
out requirements of frontline service areas

63 One Off

Subscriptions – a target £50k budget reduction was set for 
2018/19, £25k has been achieved to date but subscriptions will 
continue to be reviewed as they come due for renewal.

25 One Off

Administration subsidy grant in respect of benefits administration 
and council tax administration - an additional grant allocation has 
been received this year

(111) One Off

Grants have been received in 2018/19 for Universal Credit 
support and resource management. This was not budgeted 
income.

(142) One Off

The Council has entered into a collaborative partnership across 
Lincolnshire to undertake a study into options for sustainable 
housing led growth.

15 One Off

Staffing budgets - In year forecast savings of vacant posts which 
have been offset by an increase in agency and recruitment costs

57 One Off

System Costs – There have been additional costs incurred in 
respect of the upgrading of the HR and Payroll system.  This 
upgrade will deliver longer term licence cost savings

79 One Off

ICT – Corporate licence fee which was not budgeted for during 
2018/19

65 One Off

Audit - Changes to planned audit days has resulted in a forecast 
saving. 

(32) The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

HRA Recharges – Increase in recharge base following 
realignment of costs

(274) Recurring

Pension costs for accounting entry IAS19 are included within the 
Directorate These have been removed at line 4 

(437) One Off

Total (173)
Non-directorate variances
Interest and Investment income – additional income has been 
received as investment balances are higher than originally 
anticipated. 

(77) One Off

Interest payable and Minimum Revenue Provision – no additional 
external borrowing has been undertaken during the financial year

(145) One Off

Accounting Entries totalling £1.346m are within the directorates 
and removed at line 4 as they are non-cash items

1,346 One Off

Additional depreciation totalling £699k is within the directorates 
and removed at line 8 as this is a non-cash item

(699) One Off

Reduction in the use of reserves and grants in 2018/19 303 One Off

53



4.5 CARRY FORWARDS
It is proposed to carry budget forward into 2019/20 to fund the following 
specific projects and the Committee is asked to approve this:

Table 6

PROJECT BUDGET CARRY 
FORWARD

£’000
Funding of Community Cleaning initiatives – 
budget underspend from 2018/19

25

Continued Food Waste trial costs – carry 
forward from 2017/18

45

Funding of Economic Development initiatives 
– business rates additional income

60

Funding of the District local plan – funded 
from specific reserve

91

Funding for Council priority Deliver SK – 
funded from local priorities reserve

59

Funding for roof repairs at Broad Street 
Stamford property – additional business rates 
income

25

Funding of remedial works identified in closed 
burial grounds – additional business rates 
income

23

Funding of remedial asbestos works identified 
– additional business rates income

50

Funding of a feasibility study for Red Lion 
Square – additional business rates income

12

Funding for Public Realm project – funded 
from Local Priorities Reserve

47

Funding for Transformation project – funded 
from Invest to Save reserve

150

Funding for One SK – funded from Local 
Priorities Reserve 

59

Funding for ICT server infrastructure 
feasibility – funded from Local Priorities 
Reserve

58

Total 704

54



5 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) VARIANCE ANALYSIS

5.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a 'ring fenced' account and relates 
to the Council's Landlord functions. Revenue raised by rents and service 
charges must be sufficient to match expenditure. A summary table is provided 
below and in detail at Appendix B.

5.2 The original budget for 2018/19 was set at a surplus for the year of £6.668m 
against an actual surplus of £4.301m. The surplus is transferred to the 
reserves in order to provide additional internal funding for the HRA capital 
programme.

Table 7

Housing Revenue Account
2018/19 
Original 
Budget 
£’000

2018/19
Adjusted 
Budget 
£’000

 2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£’000

2018/19 
Variance 

(Adjusted) 
£’000

Income
Expenditure

(25,439)
16,183

(25,439)
16,345

(25,254)
19,296

185
2,951

Net Cost of Service (9,256) (9,094) (5,958) 3,136

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,816 2,816 2,793 (23)
Interest and Investment Income (228) (228) (384) (156)
Other accounting adjustments (752) (752)
DEFICIT (SURPLUS) FOR THE 
YEAR ON THE HRA (6,668) (6,506) (4,301) 2,205

5.3 As documented at Appendix B the reduced surplus for 2018/19 is impacted 
by a number of both positive and negative variances.  The most significant 
variances are as follows:

 The income expected from housing rents is £253k below budget due to 
write-offs of £115k and the void rate being higher than expected. There is 
also loss of rents through a high volume of right to buy sales. This is partly 
offset by additional income of £45k from services and facilities charges.
There is a total overspend of £949k on the repairs and maintenance. This 
includes a pension cost of £517k, however this is reversed out of the HRA 
through the statement of movement.  Support recharges were £188k more 
than expected and increases in material costs (£113k), reactive works 
(£345k) and the workforce efficiency (£94k) not being achieved due to 
vacancies being lower than anticipated, also contributed.  These were 
offset by increased income from rechargeable works (£97k) and planned 
maintenance underspend of £153k. 

55



 The workforce efficiency of (£41k) has also not been achieved on the 
Supervision and Management budget due to vacant posts being lower than 
anticipated. In addition to this, legal costs have increased by £39k due to 
more complex repossession cases. Support recharges were £363k more 
than expected and a pension cost of £226k is included, however this is 
reversed out of the HRA through the statement of movement.

 The HRA share of corporate and democratic costs has not increased as 
expected so is under spent by £116k. Recharges from the General Fund 
have increased overall as additional services have been provided by 
Transformation, Communications, Customer Services, and new IT 
systems have been implemented across the Council.  

 Capital costs of £1.469m have occurred, this is a combination of £2.549m 
revaluation gains and £4.018m expenditure on non-enhancing capital 
(expenditure incurred through the HRA capital programme, in respect of 
activities to maintain the decent homes standard within the housing stock).

6 Capital Programmes

6.1 The original capital budget for 2018/19 was set at £14.839m.  The budget is 
revised during the year as new projects are identified.  The updated position 
of £25.478m is shown in the ‘Adjusted Budget’ column in table 10 below.  A 
summary of the budget changes that have been approved during the year 
are as follows:

Table 8

Approval Date Capital Budget Adjustment £’000
June 2018 Budget carry forwards 528
July 2018 Grounds Maintenance Vehicles 450
July 2018 St Peter’s Hill Public Realm 1,661
Sept 2018 Property Acquisition 8,000

6.2 The general fund capital outturn position for 2018/19 is summarised in table 
10 below.  The capital budget has an underspend of £9.428m which has 
reduced the requirement to use reserves to £4.655m for the financial year. 

6.3 The following additional carry forward amounts (further to the amounts 
previously approved by Council) have been identified for inclusion into the 
2019/20 General Fund capital programme and the Committee are requested 
to approve these:

56



Table 9

Scheme Budget Carry 
Forward £’000

St Peter’s Hill Development 1,736
Public Realm 1,015
Gravitas Housing Scheme 280
Tourism Signage 50
Vehicle Electric Charging Points 39
Equilogic Server Based Storage 20
Power Supply Replacement 15
Pool Vehicles 12
Total 3,167

6.4 A detailed general fund capital monitoring statement is attached at Appendix 
D which provides details of the progress of the schemes. The full details of 
the financing of the programme is attached at Appendix D.

Table 10

 
General Fund Capital 
Programme

2018/19 
Origina

l 
Budget 

£000

2018/19 
Adjuste

d 
Budget 

£000

2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£000

2018/19 
Variance 
(Adjusted

) £000

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY     
Commercial and Operations 835 1,585 1,330 (255)
Growth 13,879 23,726 14,567 (9,159)
Resources 125 167 153 (14)
 14,839 25,478 16,050 (9,428)

Financing Analysis     
Prudential Borrowing (2,000) (10,000) (8,052) 1,948
Use of Reserves (10,917) (13,513) (4,655) 8,858
Capital Receipts (788) (788) (1,180) (392)
Capital Grants and Contributions (1,134) (1,177) (2,163) (986)

 (14,839) (25,478)
(16,050

)
9,428

NET EXPENDITURE 0 0 0 0

6.5 As documented in Appendix D there are a number of both positive and 
negative variances which form the £9.428m underspend.  The most significant 
variances are as follows:  

 The balance of the commercial investments acquisition budget has not 
been spent during this financial year resulting in an underspend of £3.9m

57



 There is a £1.680m underspend on the Wherrys Lane Bourne housing 
project.  The project commenced in October 2018 which is a 12-month 
programme. £1.4m of underspend has been incorporated into 2019/20 
budget, with the balance of £280k proposed to be carried forward.

 Works on the cinema have progressed during the year, with the building 
shell being completed.  Fit-out will continue into 2019/20 requiring the 
remaining budget of £1.736m to be carried forward

 Initial works have commenced on the Public Realm project, but completion 
is forecast to be June 2019, resulting in an £1.015m carry forward of this 
budget into next year.

 The Council has received £797k of disabled facilities grant funding which 
is underspent by £479k.  Mandatory DFGs require a referral from 
Lincolnshire County Council Occupational Therapy Team.  

6.6 The following table summarises the HRA capital outturn position as at 31 
March 2019.  The capital budget was set at £10.004m and currently has an 
underspend of £4.949m which has reduced the in-year transfer from reserves.  

6.7 This underspend mainly relates to the property development budget spend 
which is dependent upon sites being identified for investment.  £4.130m 
budget and associated funding has been slipped into 2019/20 for this.

6.8 The following additional carry forward amounts (further to the amounts 
previously approved by Council) have been identified for inclusion into the 
2019/20 Housing Revenue Account capital programme and the Committee is 
requested to approve these:

 Repairs Vehicles £90k

6.9 A detailed HRA capital monitoring statement is attached at Appendix E 
which provides details of the 2018/19 Outturn position of the schemes.  The 
full details of the financing of the programme is attached at Appendix F.

Table 11

 
HRA Capital Programme

2018/19
Original 
Budget 

£000

2018/189
Adjusted 
Budget 

£000

2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£000

2018/19 
Variance 

(Adjusted) 
£000

HRA Investment Programme     
Stock Improvements & New Build Programme 9,680 9,680 4,765 (4,915)
Purchase of Vehicles 324 324 184 (140)
 10,004 10,004 4,949 (5,055)
Financing Analysis     
Major Repairs Reserve (4,214) (4,214) (4,202) 12
Property Development Reserve (5,000) (5,000) (277) 4,723
HRA Capital Receipts (790) (790) (470) 320
 (10,004) (10,004) (4,949) 5,055
NET EXPENDITURE 0 0 0 0

58



7 COMMENTARY ON BALANCES AND RESERVES 
7.1 An integral element of the closedown procedure is to undertake a review of 

the usage and levels of the Council’s reserves and balances.  The financial 
statements reflect the proposed use of these and specific details of the 
significant balances and reserves are set out below and detailed at Appendix 
G & H.

The overall General Fund reserves position is a variance of £7.432m when 
compared with the forecast position which was presented to Council in March 
2019.  This is largely due to timing differences with the delivery of the General 
Fund capital programme which has been referenced at table 7 above.

  Discretionary Reserves £13.694m (lines 1-16)

7.2 These reserves have been established to financially support the delivery of 
the Council’s Corporate Strategy including both revenue and capital projects.  
In response to the Corporate Plan there is an ambition to focus funding 
towards initiatives that accelerate economic growth, e.g. visitor economy, 
tourism, heritage etc. 

7.3 The Local Priorities Reserve (line 10) has received New Homes Bonus of 
£2.086m and allocations have been utilised as follows: 

- £631k has funded revenue costs 
- £1.416m has been utilised as capital financing 
- £500k transferred to the Regeneration reserve
- £780k transferred to the St Peter’s Hill Reserve to complete the Cinema 

project. 

This leaves a closing balance £9.680m.

7.4 ICT Investment Reserve (line 6) In accordance with the decision made by 
Council on 31 January 2019 this reserve has been increased to £320k. This 
reserve will be utilised in the short to medium term to finance strategic ICT 
infrastructure improvements.

7.5 Invest to Save Reserve (line 11) In accordance with the decision made by 
Council on 31 January 2019 this reserve has been increased to £1.00m. The 
primary purpose of the reserve is to ‘pump prime’ initiatives for projects that 
clearly demonstrate within a business case that cashable savings could be 
realised following a one-off injection of investment. For 2019/20 £329k has 
currently been allocated from this reserve to fund the following initiatives

Lightbox, Transformation and Procurement officers - £168k

Intelligent Automation project - £150k

Online forms library package - £11k

59



7.6 Housing Delivery Reserve (line 12) This reserve has been increased to £912k 
following the outturn of the remaining unspent grant received in respect of 
disabled facilities improvements. Proposals to utilise this reserve are currently 
being developed.

7.7 Property Maintenance Reserve (line 14) This reserve has been established 
with a balance of £110k. The primary purpose of this reserve is to provide in-
year funding to support unforeseen expenditure that may arise in respect of 
the Council’s asset portfolio that would have a detrimental impact on the asset 
if not treated. 

7.8 Regeneration Reserve £1.213m (line 15) In order to provide the available 
financing for the acquisition of key strategic assets, this reserve has been 
established with a balance of £1.213m. The Council will use a combination of 
both internal and external borrowing as required which will incur an MRP 
(minimum revenue provision) cost and possible interest costs (where external 
borrowing is undertaken). For 2019/20 £718k of this reserve has been 
committed to contribute towards the following costs associated with the 
strategic property acquisition in Stamford. These consist of £418k of 
operational costs and £300k of interest related to the borrowing costs. 

It is recommended that the use of this reserve is expanded to finance any     
feasibility costs that will arise as potential development opportunities are 
explored.  This expenditure will be closely monitored and limited to £150k in 
each financial year.

7.9 Crowd Funding Reserve £100k The Committee is asked to consider the 
formation of a reserve to fund a new initiative that has been presented to Rural 
and Communities OSC on 13 June 2019.  The proposal would enable the 
Council to provide financial support to community projects utilising an online 
platform called Spacehive.  Spacehive provides an online platform for 
community initiatives to be advertised on. The site is also backed by a number 
of national enterprises who provide additional funding to support community 
initiatives.  The approach gives the Council the opportunity to fund initiatives 
that meet the Council’s requirements. Providing an opportunity for others to 
contribute to the schemes could see funds go further.

  Governance Reserves £3.541m (lines 17-23)

7.10 These reserves are maintained to mitigate risk, satisfy statutory and grant 
awarding bodies requirements and support prudent financial management 

7.11 The Insurance Reserve (£308k line 17) provides cover to meet unforeseen 
costs relating to insurance claims over and above the provisions made in year 
as part of managing the ‘in house risk’ with an increased self-insured strategy. 
During the year £28K has been used to fund claims and insurance premium.

60



7.12 The Council holds two Pension Reserves (£1.432m lines 18, 19). The current 
employees reserve provides for potential capital costs of any future early 
retirements and also helps to protect the Council from large changes in 
Council Tax resulting from unanticipated rises in the employer's contribution 
rate following future triennial valuations.  The level of the reserve is being 
maintained in order to fund the pension payment reducing the Council 
contribution rate from 21.1% to 16.5%.  This decision has had a positive 
impact on the revenue budgets for the same period.

7.13 Business Rates and Volatility Reserve £1.507m (line 20) To ensure there is 
minimum financial disruption to the funding of the General Fund in respect of 
Business Rates income, the Council has established a reserve to smooth out 
fluctuations in year to year funding.  In accordance with the approved budget 
framework for 2018/19 £397k has been utilised to offset the business rate 
deficit that was brought forward from the previous year.  

7.14 Special Expense Area reserves £214k (line 23) The Grantham SEA has been 
utilised by £85k to fund the Wyndham Park improvements.  This reserve has 
been replenished by £39k leaving a balance of £214k.  This is broken down 
as:

 Bourne SEA £17k

 Grantham SEA £107k

 Langtoft SEA £3k

 Stamford SEA £87k
General Fund working balance £2.835m (line 26)

7.15 The purpose of this working balance is to ensure there is sufficient financial 
resource available in order to meet unforeseen events during the course of 
the financial year.  
The proposed minimum balance is set at a level that reflects the financial risk 
the Council is currently exposed to. In previous years the target has been £1m, 
but a higher actual balance is being maintained and it is proposed to retain the 
working balance at a minimum of £2.5m due to the anticipated financial 
volatility over the medium term including the uncertainty of future funding from 
Government.

General Fund Capital Reserves £6.339m (line 33)

7.16 LAMS reserve £18k (line 29) - The Local Authority Mortgage Scheme (LAMS) 
is no longer in operation for all authorities; however the Council continues to 
receive investment interest that is derived from the investment that was placed 
to support the scheme.  The remaining balance of £18k will be retained until 
the final mortgage maturity of August 2020.  At the end of the investment 
period the balance will be reviewed in relation to the outstanding guarantee 
commitment and excess funds returned to balances. 

61



7.17 St Peter’s Hill Development £1.959m (line 30) - This reserve is utilised to fund 
the Cinema project and the adjoining public realm project.  During the year, 
£1.673m has been allocated to the reserve and £2.321m has been used to 
fund the 2018/19 expenditure.  The remaining balance will be fully utilised to 
fund the final stages of the project.

7.18 General Fund - Capital Reserve - £1.775m (line 31) - The General Fund capital 
reserve is used to assist with the funding of the capital programme.  During 
the year £732K was used to fund the acquisition of vehicles replacement 
programme but the reserve was credited with the maturity income arising from 
the LAMS investment. 

7.19 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve £2.587m (line 32) - This reserve is one of 
the sources of funding the General Fund capital programme. During the year 
the Council has received £866k from vehicle sales.  The remaining 
expenditure of the capital programme has been financed from this reserve in 
lieu of borrowing.   

HRA Reserves £38.719m Line 12

7.20 HRA working balance £2.007m (line 5) - This balance serves the same 
purpose as the General Fund working balance in that it is established to 
respond to unforeseen financial events that occur during the financial year.  

7.21 Capital Receipts Reserve (HRA) £6.659m (line 7) - The Council has 
established a capital receipts reserve where the ‘Right to Buy’ sale receipts 
are allocated. During the year £470k has been used to contribute towards the 
new build programme and receipts of £3.798m have been received from HRA 
sales including 64 housing stock. This reserve will continue to be utilised to 
contribute to the provision of affordable housing and the provision of additional 
Council housing stock.

7.22 Loan Repayment Reserve (HRA) £1.350m (line 8) – In accordance with 
Council approval on 31 March 2018 £15.00m has been allocated from this 
reserve to the Property Development Reserve (line 10) to fund the property 
development programme. As at 31 March 2019 £277k has been utilised. 

7.23 Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) £12.658m (line 9) - This reserve has been 
credited with £6.532m to fund its capital expenditure and been charged 
£4.202m to fund capital items for the 2018/19 programme. This will continue 
to be the primary financing for the HRA Capital Programme.

8.0 LOOKING AHEAD
8.1 The Committee will be aware that the 2019/20 budget framework was 

approved by Council on 1 March 2019.  The financial climate continues to be 
challenging but the Council has robust plans to deliver the ambitions set out 
in the Corporate Strategy and lead the Council to financial autonomy.  
Members will be aware that the innovation and commercial agenda carries a 
level of risk which is inevitable when introducing a transformation ambition.  

62



Therefore, it is important that members have timely and accurate financial 
information which will provide forecasts and variance narrative to assist 
members to undertake the appropriate scrutiny and guidance during the 
remainder of the financial year.

8.2 The level of reserves in order to provide financial resilience and support to 
deliver the Council’s ambitions are reviewed regularly in order to ensure the 
Council is protected from financial volatility in the medium term. The Medium 
Term Financial Plan reviewed annually will include reserves as part of the 
financial planning framework. The full details of reserves are shown in 
Appendices G & H.

9 Reasons for the Recommendations(s)
9.1 In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee, the outturn 

report is presented for members consideration.

10 Financial Implications 
10.1 These are included in the report

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - 
Resources

11 Legal and Governance Implications 
11.1 The terms of reference of the Governance and Audit Committee require the

Committee to consider for approval the annual revenue and capital outturn 
report.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Head of Legal

12 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
12.1 Not applicable

13 Risk and Mitigation
13.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks 

have been identified.

14 Community Safety Implications 
14.1 Not applicable

15 Other Implications (where significant) 
15.1 Not applicable

16 Background Papers
16.1 Determination of Budget 2018/19 and indicative budgets to 20/21 – General 

Fund, Housing Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes 
Report 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19700/CFM453Budget
%20COUNCIL%20V2.pdf

63

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19700/CFM453Budget%20COUNCIL%20V2.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19700/CFM453Budget%20COUNCIL%20V2.pdf


Outturn Position 2017/18 report 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20657/CFM459%20outt
urn%20v6%20new%20template.pdf

Financial Management Report for 2018/19 – April – June (Quarter 1) 
Monitoring Information Report 
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%2
0201819%2025th-Jul-
2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committe
e.pdf?T=9

Quarter 2 Financial Monitoring Report 2018/19

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21783/CFM478%20Budget%20Monit
oring%20Qtr2%20Final%2020.11.18.pdf

Quarter 3 Financial Monitoring Report 2018/19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22244/Quarter%203%2
0Financial%20Monitoring%20Report%202018-19.pdf

17 Appendices
17.1 Appendix A – General Fund Summary – Outturn 2018/19

Appendix B – HRA – Outturn 2018/19

Appendix C –General Fund Capital Programme Outturn 2018/19

Appendix D – General Fund Capital Programme Financing

Appendix E – HRA Capital Programme -Outturn 2018/19

Appendix F – HRA Capital Financing

Appendix G – General Fund Reserves

Appendix H – HRA Reserves

Date of Publication on Forward Plan 
(if required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Growth 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

13 February 2019

Report 
Timeline: 

Decision date  21 June 2019

64

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20657/CFM459%20outturn%20v6%20new%20template.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20657/CFM459%20outturn%20v6%20new%20template.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%20201819%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%20201819%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%20201819%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%20201819%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21783/CFM478%20Budget%20Monitoring%20Qtr2%20Final%2020.11.18.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21783/CFM478%20Budget%20Monitoring%20Qtr2%20Final%2020.11.18.pdf


SUMMARY OF GENERAL FUND ESTIMATES

2018/19 Outturn

Appendix A

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
Original Adjusted Adjusted Budget Carry Forward Adjusted Draft Outturn

Budget Budget Forward Budget Outturn Variance

A B C B-C E

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Directorate

1 Commercial and Operations 6,296 6,468 (70) 6,398 6,554 156

2 Growth 6,544 7,177 (367) 6,810 6,878 68

3 Resources 4,321 5,857 (267) 5,590 5,324 (266)

4 Removal of Accounting Adjustments 1,346 1,346

5 Net Cost of Service 17,161 19,502 (704) 18,798 20,102 1,304

6 Interest and investment Income (250) (250) (250) (327) (77)

7 Interest Payable 52 52 52 0 (52)

8 Minimum Revenue Provision 247 247 247 154 (93)

9 Depreciation (3,400) (3,400) (3,400) (4,099) (699)

10 Local Council Tax Support Scheme Grant 22 22 22 22 0 

13,832 16,173 (704) 15,469 15,852 383 

Income from Reserves & Grants

11 Events & Festivals (160) (160) (160) (116) 44

12 Football  3G 0 0 25 25

13 Apprenticeships (65) (65) (65) (36) 29

14 Economic Development & Growth (120) (120) 79 (41) (41) 0

15 Community Fund (150) (150) (150) (72) 78

16 Ward Member Fund (56) (56) (56) (56) 0

17 Big Clean (200) (200) (200) (171) 29

18 Invest to Save (332) (481) 150 (331) (202) 129

19 Pension Reserve (797) (797) (797) (802) (5)

20 Building Control Trading Account 22 22 22 37 15

21 Special Expense Areas 49 49 49 39 (10)

22 Local Priorities Reserve  0 (664) 165 (499) (460) 39

23 Service Improvement Reserve  0 (866) (866) (844) 22

24 Waste & Recycling Initiatives 0 0 0 (80) (80)

25 Stamford Art Centre Bequest 0 (33) (33) (33) 0

26 Insurance Reserve 0 0 0 (28) (28)

27 Transfer from NNDR volatility reserve (397) (397) (397) (397) 0

28 Grants (151) (321) 45 (276) (260) 16

(2,357) (4,239) 439 (3,800) (3,497) 303

29 Total Net Cost of Service 11,475 11,934 (265) 11,669 12,355 686 

30 Business Rates (4,400) (4,400) (4,400) (4,423) (23)

31 Business Rates Pilot Gain (250) (709) 192 (517) (2,430) (1,913)

32 Collection Fund Deficit 321 321 321 321 0

33 Transfer to Regeneration Reserve 0 0 0 713 713

34 Transfer to Reserve 0 0 0 0 500 500

35 Transfer to Property Maintenance Reserve 0 0 110 110

36 Council Tax (7,146) (7,146) (7,146) (7,146) 0

37 Working balance transfer 73 73 0 (73)

38 Total Funding (11,475) (11,934) 265 (11,669) (12,355) (686)

39 Total Variance (to)/from reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 

65



Housing Revenue Account Summary Appendix B

Budget 

£'000

Adjusted 

Budget 

£'000

Draft 

Outturn 

£'000

Outturn 

Variance 

£'000

INCOME

Dwelling Rents (24,439) (24,439) (24,186) 253

Non Dwelling Rents (311) (311) (330) (19)

Charges for Services and Facilities (622) (622) (667) (45)

Other Income (67) (67) (71) (4)

TOTAL INCOME (25,439) (25,439) (25,254) 185

EXPENDITURE

Repairs and Maintenance 7,907 7,913 8,862 949

Supervision and Management - General 2,783 2,866 3,553 687

Supervision and Management - Special 1,097 1,203 1,242 39

HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Costs 460 460 344 (116)

Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets 3,431 3,431 3,504 73

Revaluation Losses (Gains) 0 0 (2,583) (2,583)

Non- Enhancing Capital Expenditure 0 0 4,018 4,018

Debt Management Expenses 35 35 39 4

Provision for bad debts 245 245 269 24

Other Expenditure (Pension Deficit) 225 225 0 (225)

Centralised Budgets 0 0 0 0

HRA Business Managers/Assistant Directors 0 (33) 0 33

HRA Internal Insurance 0 0 14 14

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 16,183 16,345 19,262 2,917

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (9,256) (9,094) (5,992) 3,102

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,816 2,816 2,793 (23)

Interest and Investment Income (228) (228) (384) (156)

Return on Pension Assets * 207 207

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets * (1,728) (1,728)

Capital receipts pooling * 803 803

DEFICIT (SURPLUS) FOR THE YEAR ON THE HRA (6,668) (6,506) (4,301) 2,205

MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE

(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year 6,668 6,506 4,301 (2,205)

Other Reserve Movements 225 225 125 (100)

Repayment Of Principal (3,222) (3,222) (3,222) 0

Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve (Depn less MRA) (3,101) (3,101) (2,890) 211

Net charges made on Retirement Benefits (IAS19) 1,062 1,062

Employer's contribution to Pension Fund (348) (348)

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets (1,728) (1,728)

Capital receipts pooling 803 803

Non-Enhancing Capital Expenditure Financed from MRR 4,018 4,018
Revaluation (Gains)/Losses (2,583) (2,583)
Other Adjustments 1 1

Variance - reduction in transfer to reserve 570 408 (461) (869)

*Accounting adjustment reversed out on the HRA balance

Outturn

2018/19

66



General Fund Capital Programme

2018/19 Outturn

Appendix C

Scheme Description

Original 

Budget 

£'000

Adjusted 

Budget 

£'000

Draft 

Outturn 

£'000

Variance 

(Adjusted

) £'000

Variance Explanations

Proposed 

Additional 

Slippage
COMMERCIAL

Wheelie Bin Replacements 175 175 55 (120) There is a saving of £120k due to reduced requirements.

Pool Vehicles 247 247 235 (12) An under spend (12K) has occurred due to delay in the 

delivery of some of the new vehicles.

12

Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 311 401 360 (41) Underspend due to procurement savings on purchase of 

sweeper.

Vehicle Electric Charging Points 0 39 0 (39) Procurement will take place in 19/20 to ensure the council 

achieves value for money

39

Vehicle Replacement Programme 102 163 153 (10)

EnvironmentSK Vehicle Purchase 0 560 527 (33) Cost of vehicles was less than budgeted.

835 1,585 1,330 (255) 51

Purchase of South Kesteven trailer 55 55 49 (6)

Property Acquisition 0 8,000 8,053 53

Shop Front Scheme 130 130 76 (54) Underspend due to project delays caused by weather and 

procurement issues.

St Peter's Hill Development 5,500 5,400 3,664 (1,736) Project completion expected in July 2019.  £1.55M 

underspend to be proposed additional slippage.

1,736

Property Investment Strategy 3,900 3,900 0 (3,900) Underspend has been incorporated into budget for 2019/20

Local Authority Controlled Company 2,550 2,800 1,120 (1,680) 12mth build programme, started in October.  £1.4m of 

underspend has been incorporated into 2019/20 budget, with 

the balance of £280k to be proposed additional slippage.

280

Public Realm 0 1,661 646 (1,015) Project completion expected in July 2019.  £69k underspend 

to be proposed additional slippage.

1,015

Disabled Facilities Grant 797 797 318 (479) Demand was dependant on referrals from LCC Occ 

Therapists

Empty Homes Financial Assistance 50 50 0 (50) No applications received.

Essential Home Grant Assistance 75 75 7 (68) Cases under this budget now fall under DFG

Car Park Ticket Machines 150 150 92 (58) Scheme Completed.  Costs were less than expected.

Car Park Barriers 50 50 0 (50) Project not started during the year.  Has been included in 

2019/20 budget

Deepings Leisure Centre - Boilers 70 70 0 (70) It was decided not to progress with scheme.

Meres Leisure Centre - PA System 35 35 35 0

Market Stall Covers 50 50 20 (30) Covers provided for Grantham.  Stamford & Bourne Covers 

will be replaced next year.

Tourism Signage 50 50 0 (50) Details of signs had not been finalised.  Budget of £50k will 

be proposed additional slippage.

50

Wyndham Park Lighting 25 25 31 6

Grantham Arts Centre - Theatre Lighting 35 35 36 1

Wyndham Park Improvements 357 393 410 17 Overspend due to delays and asbestos work. Contingency 

element of the HLF grant will fund 87% of additional cost.

CCTV Springfield Road 0 0 10 10 Funded through S106

13,879 23,726 14,567 (9,159) 3,081

RESOURCES

Financial System Upgrade 50 50 141 91 Additional support required, increased licensing costs and 

addition of DB capture module.

Equillogic Server Based Storage 20 20 0 (20) Delay in project, budget will be proposed additional slippage. 20

Uninterruptible Power Supply Replacement 15 15 0 (15) Delay in project, budget will be proposed additional slippage. 15

ICT Infrastructure - Sandbox Firewall 40 82 12 (70) In depth review of cyber risks delayed works, forecast 

underspend of £65k has been incorporated into 2019/20 

programme.

125 167 153 (14) 35

TOTAL 14,839 25,478 16,050 (9,428) 3,167

GROWTH

67



General Fund Capital Programme

Financing Statement 2018/19

Appendix  D

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

Description Original Adjusted Draft

Budget Budget Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund

Commercial and Operations 835               1,585           1,331         

Growth 13,879          23,726         14,566       

Resources 125               167              153            

TOTAL - General Fund 14,839          25,478         16,050       

GENERAL FUND FINANCED BY:

Supported Borrowing -                    -                   -                 

Unsupported Borrowing 2,000 10,000 8,052

Specific Reserve - Capital 716               777              732

Specific Reserve - St Peters Hill 5,200            5,200           2,321

Usable Capital Receipts 788               788              1,180

Capital Grants and Contributions

     - Disabled Facility Grant 797               797              325            

     - LLEP Funding -                    -                   1,443         

     - Historic England 65                 65                38              

     - Herirtage Lottery Funding 272               315              357            

Direct Revenue Financing

     - Wyndham - SEA 70                 63                85

     - S106 Monies -                    -                   10              

     - Shop Front Scheme 65                 65                38

     - ICT Reserve 76                 118              53

     - Local Priorities Reserve 4,750            7,250           1,416

     - Contribution from Revenue 40                 40                -                 

TOTAL - GF CAPITAL PROGRAMME 14,839          25,478         16,050       

68



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

2018/19 Outturn
Appendix E

Scheme Description
Original 

Budget £'000

Adjusted 

Budget 

£'000

Draft Outturn 

£'000

Variance 

(Adjusted) 

£'000

Proposed 

Additional 

Slippage

£'000

Heating And Ventilation 1,350 1,350 1,257 (93) Progress was affected by contractors resource issues.

Repairs Vehicles 324 324 184 (140) Delivery of 2 tippers was delayed.  Proposed additional slippage of 90k 90

Kitchens & Bathrooms Programmes 1,000 1,000 1,022 22

Re-Roofing 1,100 1,132 1,125 (7)

Electrical Rewires 250 250 160 (90) Works delayed due to need to remove asbestos materials

Replacement Door Programme 80 80 84 4

External Wall Insulation 0 0 0 0

New Build Properties 790 758 232 (526)
During the year pre-build works have commenced on 7 schemes.  Cost of 

completion of these has been incorporated into the 2019/20 budget.

Property Development 5,000 5,000 779 (4,221)

Purchases in the year have been made on 2 houses and a site on  Swinegate and 

conversions have been carried out on 4 properties.  Negotiations have begun on 5 

other sites. £4.130M has already been slipped into the 2019/20 budget.

Communal Rooms 70 70 88 18 Some works completed related to capital bid on revenue.

Central Heating Repairs 0 0 3 3

Sewage Refurbishment 40 40 15 (25) Works were delayed in starting, these have been incorporated in 2019/20 proposals.

TOTAL 10,004 10,004 4,949 (5,055) 90

69



HRA Capital Programme 

Financing Statement 2018/19

Appendix F

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

Description Original Adjusted Draft

Budget Budget Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000

Captial Programme

   Stock Improvements & New Builds 9,680 9,680 4,765

   Purchase of Vehicles 324 324 184

10,004 10,004 4,949

HRA FINANCED BY:

Major Repair Reserve 4,214 4,214 4,202

Property Development Reserve 5,000 5,000 277

Capital Receipts 790 7,490 470

TOTAL - HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 10,004 16,704 4,949

70



Reserves Statement - General Fund

2018/19  Outturn
Appendix G

GENERAL FUND RESERVES STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Balance Transfer Transfer Actual Balance 

as at to Reserve from Reserve as at 

31 March 2018 in year in year 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund

Discretionary Reserves

1 Stamford Arts Centre 33 (33) 0

2 Training and Development 15 15

3 Events and Festivals 233 (116) 117

4 Apprenticeships 36 (36) 0

5 Waste and Recycling initatives 156 (80) 76

6 ICT investment 173 147 320

7 Economic Development & Growth 169 (41) 128

8 Service Improvement Reserve 1,065 (1,065) 0

9 Community Fund 150 (72) 78

10 Local Priorities Reserve 10,921 2,086 (3,327) 9,680

11 Invest to Save 802 198 1,000

12 Housing Delivery 347 565 912

13 Ward Members 56 (56) 0

14 Property Maintenance 110 110

15 Regeneration 1,213 1,213

16 Food Waste 170 (125) 45

14,326 4,319 (4,951) 13,694

Governance Reserves

17 Insurance Reserve 336 (28) 308

18 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 466 (45) 421

19                                - Current EmployeesPensions Reserve - Current Employees 1,768 (757) 1,011

20 Business Rates Volatility 1,729 175 (397) 1,507

21 Building Control (7) 37 30

22 Football 3G Pitch 25 25 50

23 Special Expense Area Reserve 259 (45) 214

4,576 237 (1,272) 3,541

24 Total General Revenue Reserves 18,902 4,556 (6,223) 17,235

Homelessness 21 178                    199

Parks 89                      89

GLEP 357                    357

New Burdens Grant 111 11                      122

Neighbourhood Planning Grant 74 1                        75

Garden Towns & Villages 90 90

Custom Build 30 30

Planning Delivery 90 (14) 76

DHP top  up 7 7

Individual Electoral Registration 118 5                        123

LGA Commercial 6 6

Garden Village 385 (117) 268

Historic England 56 56

Grantham Growth 69 69

Welfare Reform 100 100

25 Government Grants Received 1,057 741 (131) 1,667

26 Working Balance 2,835 2,835

27 Total Revenue Reserves 22,794 5,297 (6,354) 21,737

28 Capital Reserve

29 LAMS Reserve 304 (286) 18

30 St Peters Hill Development 2,607 1,673 (2,321) 1,959

31 General Fund Capital Reserve 1171 1,336 (732) 1,775

32 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 3,794 866 (2,073) 2,587

33 Total Capital Reserves 7,876 3,875 (5,412) 6,339

34 Total General Fund Reserves 30,670 9,172 (11,766) 28,076

71



Reserves Statements - HRA

2018/19 Outturn

Appendix H

HRA RESERVES STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Balance Transfer Transfer Balance 

as at to Reserve from Reserve as at 

31 March 2018 in year in year 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Revenue Reserves

1     Insurance Reserve 200 200

2     Service Specific Funds: 686 (250) 436

3     HRA Improvement Reserve 561 95 656

4     Residents Involvement Reserve 30 30

5     Working Balance 2,489 (482) 2,007

6 Total HRA Revenue Reserves 3,936 125 (732) 3,329

HRA Capital Reserve

7     HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 3,331 3,798 (470) 6,659

8     Loan Repayment Reserve 16,350 (15,000) 1,350

9     Major Repairs Reserve 10,328 6,532 (4,202) 12,658

10     Property Development Reserve 15,000 (277) 14,723

11 Total HRA Capital Reserves 30,009 25,330 (19,949) 35,390

12 Total HRA Reserves 33,945 25,455 (20,681) 38,719

72



Governance and Audit 
Committee
21 June 2019

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

        

Counter Fraud Annual Report 2018-19
One of the key areas for Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is to 
monitor and review the counter fraud arrangements in place and the activities that are being 
undertaken to mitigate those risks.  

Report Author

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer

 01476 406038

 t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright 6 June 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles 7 June 2019

Signed off by: Cllr Adam Stokes 10 June 2019

Recommendation to the decision maker

1. The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the contents of this 
report including the proposed workplan for 2019/20.

73

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee it is a requirement to produce 

an annual report on the counter fraud arrangements in place and the activities undertaken.  
Counter fraud is fundamental to the Council’s achievement of its strategic objectives.  The 
report being presented covers the financial year 2018-19 and details the various aspects of 
work delivered during the course of the year. 

2 Summary of position
2.1 The Council is committed to the highest standards of quality, probity, openness and 

accountability. As part of the Committee’s terms of reference, counter fraud is one of the 
key areas of focus being an essential element of delivering good governance. In order to 
develop and promote greater awareness, and in line with best practice, a review of the 
Council’s counter fraud arrangements has been undertaken culminating in this Annual 
Report for 2018-19. This report sets out the key outcomes from the counter fraud work 
delivered during the year relating to both welfare/benefit fraud and non-welfare/benefit fraud. 

Like any organisation South Kesteven is inherently vulnerable to the risk of fraud and 
corruption.  With reducing Government funding and the current economic position it is vital 
that robust arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud are maintained and best 
use of information and knowledge is made in order to ensure effective fraud prevention 
procedures are in place.

2.2 Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership
With an emphasis on developing a ‘first line of defence’ in tackling fraud, the Partnership 
continues to improve fraud resilience across Lincolnshire by co-ordinating targeted fraud 
awareness campaigns; sharing fraud intelligence, best practice and expertise; delivering 
savings and making effective use of resources.  

Extensive and varied communication channels have been used to promote fraud awareness 
across a wide audience and increased whistleblowing traffic is evidence that this is working 
well.

The Council continues to actively contribute to the work of the Partnership.  The 
Partnership’s key outcomes in 2018-19 include:

 £1.4m (gross) Council Tax Single Person Discount Review

 3,025 removals of Single Person Discount (totalling £75k)

 Supporting roll out of the Fraud Awareness elearning across Lincolnshire (licence 
extended to 2021)

 Regular liaison and sharing of information on scams, alerts, fraud cases 
2.3 Fraud elearning

Officers and Members will be asked to complete fraud elearning during the Summer.  
Governance and Audit Committee are asked for their support in making this training 
mandatory.

2.4 National Fraud Initiative
Since 1996 the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) every two years (every year for Council Tax 
Single Person Discount) undertake a compulsory national data exercise.  The NFI data is 
provided by some 1,300 participating organisations from across both public and private 

74



sectors including The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), Home Office, Companies 
House and many others. It consists of 23 different data sources containing over a third of a 
billion records. These include police authorities, local probation boards, fire and rescue 
authorities as well as local councils.

It is a tool that is helpful in assisting local authorities to identify potential fraud in areas such 
as council tax, housing benefit, pensions, payroll, creditors and housing tenancy and since 
1996 the programme has helped identify over £1 billion in fraud or error. 

The provision of a council tax discount for one adult living in a property with no other adults, 
known as single person discount, is constantly under threat and viewed as a target for 
fraudsters.  Between April 2016 and March 2018 the NFI has helped stop over 30,343 
incorrect claims for council tax single person discount.

Summary of the Council’s matches from the NFI 2018 exercise
The table below shows the counts of individuals with potential fraud risk factors identified.  
Broken down into dataset types, individuals are assigned a cumulative score based on the 
number of matches identified and then grouped into categories.

Fraud risk category
High Medium Low Nil Total

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 18 194 174 24 410
Housing Benefit Claimants 39 21 254 9 323
Housing Tenants 59 0 8 5 72
Waiting List 113 0 1 0 114
Payroll 3 0 0 1 4
Creditors Reports - - - - 590

232 215 437 39 1,513
Council Tax Single Person 
Discount Review 2,694

The matches from the NFI 2018 exercise are currently being reviewed and the results will 
be reported in the 2019-20 Counter Fraud Annual Report.

2.5 Summary of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Fraud Performance
Fraud cases are identified in numerous different ways with referrals coming from various 
sources.  A primary channel is through joint working with the Department of Work and 
Pensions.  The Council is currently undertaking joint working on several cases where there 
has been an allegation of fraud against a claimant within the district that is claiming Housing 
Benefit and/or Council Tax Discount. Fraud cases can also be referred from other 
departments within the Council.  This could include, but is not limited to, the Income 
Recovery Team, Visiting Officers or Housing Officers.  It is also possible for referrals to 
come from other authorities. Whistleblowing from members of the public also plays a crucial 
part in combatting fraud within the Housing Benefit system.  Referrals can be made online, 
via email and via the phone.

To help councils combat fraud there are several data matching tools, which are outlined in 
more detail in this report that can assist.  These tools are invaluable in identifying claimants 

75



that are receiving Housing Benefit/Council Tax Discount when they are not entitled to.  All 
work in relation to fraud referrals is carried out within the Benefits Team, including identifying 
the overpayments and the recovery of overpayments created as a result of the fraud.

The table below provides a summary of activity within this area for 2018/19:

2018/19 2017/18
No. cases 16 12

Housing Benefit overpayment £33,209.71 £37,838.35

Council Tax Discount overpayment £3,957.78 £1,126.08

Total £37,167.49 £38,964.43

Number of sanctions* - 4
Sanction: Housing Benefit/Council Tax 
Discount overpayment value - £2,600.15

*Sanctions include an administrative penalty or a prosecution.

Single Person Discount Review

For Council tax purposes, residents can apply for Single Persons Discount (SPD) should 
they be the sole occupier of a property.    In respect of this Council, 20,238 households are 
currently in receipt of SPD, this represents 31.43% of the total households in the district.  
SPD is an annual discount of 25% off the Council Tax bill which, in financial terms, equates 
to an overall reduction of £7.4m in the total Council Tax liability.   

Residents who wish to apply for SPD are asked to complete a declaration confirming that 
they are the only adult resident in the property and that they are eligible to claim the discount. 

The Council’s primary approach for checking SPD entitlement is to participate biennially in 
a county wide counter fraud review alongside all Lincolnshire authorities.  

The process for this includes taking a data extract from the Council Tax records of accounts 
in receipt of SPD.  This data is then put through a screening process to identify accounts 
which may be claiming SPD, where they are not entitled to, highlighting accounts where 
contact is needed. The results of the exercise identified 19.52% of all SPD claimants that 
were subsequently contacted in order for them to validate their entitlement.  

2018 SPD Managed Service Review Summary 

Council Screened Contacted Removals Removal 
rate

Gross 
revenue 

South Kesteven 15,105* 2,950 640 4.2% £292k**
Lincolnshire Total 74,961 15,591 3,652 Average 5% £1.4m

*Accounts in receipt of Council Tax Discount are not included in the screening process.

**The figure quoted is indicative and still to be finalised.

The cost of the review is split between partners based on the proportionate level of the 
Council Tax. The review is nearing completion when the full cost will be known to the 
Lincolnshire authorities.  It is also worth noting that the total estimated revenue generated 

76



is a gross figure and is not all retained by the Council.  The figure that is retained by the 
Council is around 10%, approximately £34k.

There is currently a feasibility study being carried out by Lincolnshire partners to investigate 
the potential of utilising third party expertise to undertake a rolling review of SPD and a 
referral system for Single Person Discount. It is suggested that this could highlight further 
accounts that are fraudulently claiming SPD.    

2.6 Whistleblowing investigations
During 2018-19 there were 35 whistleblowing allegations all of which have been investigated 
and action taken where appropriate.  This is an increase on previous years as shown below: 

Year Number of allegations
2015-16 11
2016-17 15
2017-18 19
2018-19 35

Summary of whistleblowing allegations received 2018-19:

Type of allegation No. Outcome

Benefits/SPD 14 No further action and/or referred to DWP 

Tenancy 8 No further action required and/or monitoring

Licensing 3 No further action required and/or monitoring

Other 5 No further action required and/or monitoring

Employees raising concerns 5 Investigations undertaken following the appropriate policy 

2.7 Action Plan
The following actions are proposed for 2019/20:

 continuing to raise awareness amongst staff, stakeholders and partners about the 
risk of fraud in all areas of the Council’s business

 mandatory fraud elearning to be rolled out over the Summer to all officers and 
Members 

 ongoing contribution to the work of the LCFP and supporting the delivery of their 
action plan

 continuing our commitment to the 2018 National Fraud Initiative Data matching 
exercises

 continue to support DWP Housing Benefit investigations

 continue to keep abreast of national developments in counter fraud work so that the 
Council can continue to respond positively to new ideas, initiatives and examples of 
best practice

3 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
3.1 N/a

77



4 Reasons for the Recommendation
Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is required to monitor 
and review the counter fraud arrangements in place and the activities that are being 
undertaken to mitigate those risks.

5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
5.1 N/A

6 Financial Implications 
6.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles

7 Legal and Governance Implications 
7.1 The report and action plan for 2019/20 are to be welcomed from a governance and legal 

perspective, as they represent effective ways of identifying and dealing with counter fraud.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail Head of Legal

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
8.1 None

9 Risk and Mitigation
9.1 None

10 Community Safety Implications 
10.1 None

11 Background Papers
11.1 None

12 Appendices
None

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by Not applicable

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  21 June 2019

78



Governance and Audit 
Committee
21 June 2019

Report of: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Commercial and 
Operations

        

Health & Safety Annual Report 2018/19 
The report presents the Health and Safety Annual Report 2018/19. This provides an overview of the 
health and safety management arrangements within South Kesteven District Council. It summarises 
the progress made and, looking forward, identifies the key areas of focus to ensure the Council 
maintains and improves health and safety performance.

Report Author

Philip Swinton, Corporate Compliance Officer for Health and Safety

 01476 406555

phil.swinton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Ian Yates, Assistant Director Commercial and 
Operational 4 June 2019

Approved by: Gary Smith, Director Commercial and Operational 5 June 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley 7 June 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee review the attached 
Health and Safety Annual Report 2018/19 and note the key areas of focus.

79

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 Health and safety performance continues to be effective, nonetheless, it is crucial that the 

Council continues to review and improve the management arrangements and working 
practices. Members will be aware that the organisation provides a very wide range of 
services; some with inherently higher risks profiles, and often in challenging environments.  
This report details these arrangements alongside the annual performance and sets out how 
the Council plans to move forward.

1.2 Overall there are no significant changes in performance. Accident levels have decreased, 
and numbers are consistent with reported figures from previous years.

1.3 Key areas of focus for the next year will be:

Audit; Review and provision of guidance; health and safety culture; Risk assessment and 
control; Accident and near miss reporting; Monitoring of all Council activities; and the 
Council’s health and safety policies.

1.4 The Health and Safety Annual Report 2018/19 is attached as Appendix A.

2 Available Options Considered
2.1 No other options. This report is provided to Members for their information on an annual 

basis.

3 Preferred Option
3.1 Approval of the report alongside continued Member championing and senior management 

support for robust health and safety arrangements within SKDC.

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
4.1 Failure to manage health and safety may result in incidents of serious ill health and injury. 

This could also result in legal actions and prosecutions and carries the potential for financial 
implications.

5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
5.1 The various actions and implications within the annual report will be followed up with 

relevant staff.  This will include updating service by service risk audits and implementing 
mitigating management actions, as appropriate. 

6 Financial Implications 
6.1 Members are reminded that the terms of reference for the Governance and Audit Committee 

include the responsibility to review the annual report and the effectiveness of the Council’s 
health and safety arrangements. Risk management and health and safety are closely 
aligned, and preventative actions and control measures must be regularly reviewed to 
ensure arrangements are operating effectively.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director Resources

7 Legal and Governance Implications 
7.1 The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 (as amended) (“the Act”) along with supporting 

regulations, covers occupational health and safety in workplaces in Great Britain. The Act 
sets out the duties which the Council has in respect of its employees and those who may 

80



be affected by its work activities. The annual report sets out an overview of the Council’s 
approach to health and safety issues.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal Services

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
8.1 None identified.

9 Risk and Mitigation
9.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are included in 

the report.

10 Community Safety Implications 
10.1 None

11 Other Implications (where significant) 
11.1 None

12 Background Papers
12.1 http://monty/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=16583&p=0

13 Appendices
13.1 Appendix A - Health and Safety Annual Report 2018/19

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

N/A

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee

Annual Report

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  21 June 2019

81

http://monty/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=16583&p=0


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Health and Safety 

Annual Report 

2018 – 2019 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Author: Philip Swinton 

 Corporate Health & Safety Officer 

Date:  April 2019 
 
 
 
 

83



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 2 of 15 
2018-2019   

  

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

  

1.0 Executive Summary 3 

2.0 Corporate Health and Safety Arrangements 

 Figure 1 - Plan, Do, Check, Act 

3 

4 

3.0 Health and Safety Training 5 

4.0 Accidents and Incidents 6 

  Figure 2 - Trend in accident numbers by service area 7 

  Figure 3 - Accident numbers by service areas 8 

  Figure 4 - Comparison by accident type 2017/18 – 2018/19 9 

  Figure 5 - Riddor - Summary of accidents reported 10 

5.0 Health and Safety Performance Measures 10 

  Figure 6 - H&S Target performance indicator 11 

6.0 Health and Safety Strategy going forward 2019-2021 11 

7.0 Outsourced Leisure Centre Accident Statistics 13 

  Figure 7 - Leisure Centre accident & incident numbers 14 

  Appendix A - Leisure Centre accident rates (over 5 years) 15 

 
 

 

84



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 3 of 15 
2018-2019   

INTRODUCTION 

 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

This report provides an overview of health and safety; the approach taken and performance for South 

Kesteven District Council.  It summarises the performance during financial year 2018/19 and identifies 

the key areas of focus to ensure the Council maintains and where required, improves its health and 

safety performance.   

 

The health and safety performance of the Council remains satisfactory and continued improvements are 

moving the authority to a positive state. The rolling program of risk audits has seen an improvement in 

how the Council recognises and mitigates the risks faced by staff and the authority.  

 

Key actions identified for the future include the ongoing work to improve the health and safety culture 

within SKDC, continued monitoring of Council activities and the production of further guidance for 

managers to build on knowledge and support them in the implementation of Council policy and 

procedures.  

 

1.1 The Health and Safety Management Approach 

 

The direction for health and safety is set by the Councillors through Cabinet.  Senior Management will 

remain responsible for ensuring sufficient time and resources; making sure these are available to the 

Council in order to fulfil its health and safety responsibilities and provide staff with opportunity to 

feedback on such matters.  However, staff at every level retain a responsibility to support the Council in 

its efforts to improve the culture of health and safety across the full range of Council activities. 

 

2.0 CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY ARRANGEMENTS 

 

The Corporate Health and Safety Team provides support, advice and guidance to all officers of the 

Council on matters of health, safety and welfare. It is important that the authority continues in its 

efforts to simplify health and safety making it more accessible and inclusive to help grow the culture.  

 

The Plan, Do, Check, Act Cycle is a perfect example of simplifying the message.  This is based on 

guidance created by the HSE (HSG65) and echoes the 8 key elements approach previously employed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 4 of 15 
2018-2019   

FIGURE 1 

 

2.1 How Health and Safety Risks aim to be controlled within the Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2 Plan, Do, Check, Act 

 

 Plan:  
Where is the authority now and where does it need to be? 

 

 Do: 
Assess the risk, organise the activities and ensure adequate resource. 

 

 Check: 
Monitor activities and processes and audit them for weakness and strengths and promote good 

practice. 

 

 Act: 
Review findings from monitoring and audits, including lessons from accident investigation and 

implement actions identified. 

 

 

 

86



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 5 of 15 
2018-2019   

2.3 Focussed Activity 

 

The main areas of focus for review and improvement during 2018/19 was to establish guidance in order 

to support managers and staff alike in their roles and the Councils risk management approach, 

specifically on how the organisation can identify and mitigate the hazards created by Council activities. 

This has been achieved and will be monitored and updated by Corp H&S bi annually. 

 

Risk assessments are an integral tool for providing continued compliance along with relevant legislation 

in order to ensure the safety of all affected.  They identify the risks which officers face, the risk posed to 

others by actions and the controls and procedures that need to be in place to reduce or remove that 

risk.  Service areas are presently being audited and assessed; with areas being identified and actioned 

for improvement.  With many areas having procedures already in place, the authority is moving in a 

constructive direction; with this continued support shown it will continue to grow. 

 

Fire arrangements as identified in last years report, have been implemented and tested to ensure 

suitability. These have also been examined and tested by the Fire Service. The Councils fire safety 

arrangements are in a good position, but must remain an area of focus. Fire poses a very real risk to life 

and property and the Council must maintain the highest standards possible.  For this reason the 

Corporate Health and Safety team will continue to monitor and work with those involved in fire safety 

standards. 

 

2.4 Higher Risk Operational Areas 

 

The Direct Works (Repairs) and Street Scene teams, which includes waste and street collections, 

including the vehicle workshop, remain the higher risk operational areas provided internally by the 

authority.  

 

Direct Works have moved forward in their approach to and management of risk and continue to 

improve. The induction process for Street Scene has also been completed.  All relevant staff have 

undertaken the refresher training required following the changes and a program of training is now in 

place to be performed bi-annually for all staff within Street Scene. 

Where contractors are employed, i.e. grounds maintenance, gas works, etc., the Authority must commit 

to and maintain monitoring of these activities to assure a high standard of safety and compliance which 

is expected by South Kesteven District Council.  The contracting of work does not discharge the Council 

from its duties and it must ensure that works are completed safely and this is documented. 

 

3.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY TRAINING 

 

Health and Safety Training remains essential to ensure employees work safely and provides 

management with a level of assurance that their teams are health and safety competent and confident 

in their roles. Employee training needs are identified in 1-2-1’s, as well as previously defined training 

required for a particular role. Both e-learning and classroom based training are offered depending on 

the scenario, type of training and how best information and instruction is delivered to employees.  As 

with previous years Corporate Health and Safety organised the following training during 2018/19 with 

the addition of evacuation chair use. 

87



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 6 of 15 
2018-2019   

 Health and Safety – induction for new employees. 

 Workstation Safety Plus – mandatory training for all display screen equipment users. 

 Fire Safety Plus – mandatory fire safety awareness training for all new employees. 

 Fire Warden – refresher fire warden training needs for all Council workplace premises. 

 First Aid – refresher first aid training. 

 Lone Worker Device – training in new arrangements, Smartphone App option and new device.  

 Trained trainers in evacuation chair use. 

 

4.0 ACCIDENTS AND INCIDENTS 

 

Services are responsible for reporting, recording and investigating accidents and incidents that occur 

within their own service area. This includes work related incidents where members of the public may be 

involved. The objective of accident investigation is to identify the root cause of an incident and put in 

place remedial actions to significantly reduce that type of incident from occurring again.  All health and 

safety incidents are submitted to Corporate Health and Safety, who oversee a central database and 

provide assurance to the Council that suitable and sufficient investigations are taking place, 

proportionate to the level of incident.   

 

4.1 Accident and Incident Trends 

 

The number of accidents reported across the authority has reduced by 14% (Figure 2) and shows a drop 

this financial year for Direct Works, a recognised higher risk area. 

 

This is very encouraging however, the authority must remain focused on identifying and reducing 

hazards as far as possible.  Manual handling incident types remain the main cause of incidences within 

Direct Works as would be expected from this field.  Street Scene saw a reduction in accidents resulting 

in persons being injured but have seen an increase in the number of vehicle accidents. This service area 

has been involved in 12 vehicle accidents this financial year. 

 

Several of these incidents were minor e.g. damaged wing mirror on third party vehicle, scraped wheel 

arch on third party vehicle. There has been an increase in fleet size and in activity which may be a 

contributing factor. There is always the potential for significant injury and associated cost/reputational 

implications with vehicle accidents and this must be an area of focus for this service area and all Council 

vehicle users in the coming year.  

 

Last years report considered the possibility that the authority was under reporting accidents, given the 

size of the organisation and range of activities performed, including several high risk areas. It must be 

acknowledged that figures have not fluctuated greatly in the last three years, so the Council can have 

confidence that these figures provide a real representation of the Councils current accident rates.  

 

Slips, trips and falls and manual handling accidents remain, as expected, the most common and 

consistently reported incident types and are an area of continued focus. This remains representative of 

the national trend. 

 

 

88



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 7 of 15 
2018-2019   

4.2 Accident and Incident Numbers and Charts 

 

The following table shows the number of reported accidents/incidents over the last 3 years for internal 

council work related activities.  Figure 2 gives a list of all service areas who reported incidents.  

 

In figure 4 is a breakdown of the most common and significant accident types. One category which has 

seen an increase is the ‘other’ category. These are predominantly low level incidents of varying nature 

and not all are work related accidents but accidents at work which are recorded.  

For example : scolded wrist with hot soup, dust in eyes, hoover which fell on someone’s knee, spider 

bite which became irritated, hurt back when alighting a vehicle. 

FIGURE 2 

 

TREND IN ACCIDENT NUMBERS BY SERVICE AREA 

 

SERVICE AREA 

ACCIDENT NUMBERS 

TREND 
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Street Scene  
- Waste & Recycling 

12 27 31 

 

Direct Works  
- Repairs 

14 14 9 

 

Arts Centres 3 4 3 

 

All Other Service Areas 13 13 7 

 

TOTALS 42 58 50 

 

89



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 8 of 15 
2018-2019   

FIGURE 3 

 

The following chart shows the accident numbers by service areas over the last 3 years 

 

90



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 9 of 15 
2018-2019   

FIGURE 4 
 
COMPARISON BY ACCIDENT TYPE 2017/18 – 2018/19 
 

ACCIDENT CATEGORY 2017/18 % OF TOTAL 2018/19 % OF TOTAL 

Slips, trips and falls 8 13.8 4 8.5 

Manual handling 12 20.7 5 10.6 

Struck against fixed/stationary object 17 29.3 1 1.7 

Struck by moving vehicle 2 3.4 1 1.7 

Fall from height 0 0 0 0 

Trapped by something 0 0 0 0 

Contact with harmful substance 0 0 0 0 

Contact with electricity 0 0 0 0 

Injured by an animal 1 1.7 1 1.7 

Violence and abuse 0 0 3 5.2 

Struck by moving/flying object 3 5.2 0 0 

Vehicle incidents 3 5.2 12 24.0 

Other 12 20.7 23 46.0 

TOTALS 58 - 50 - 

91



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 10 of 15 
2018-2019   

4.3 Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 

 

RIDDOR regulations require certain specified accidents, ill-health and dangerous occurrences to be 

reported to the relevant enforcing authority, being the Health and Safety Executive (HSE). The 

Council’s number of reportable incidents under the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous 

Occurrences Regulations. (RIDDOR)   

 The Council was required to report only three incidents this financial year. All were fully 

investigated. 

 

FIGURE 5 

 

RIDDOR – Summary of Accidents Reported  
 

DATE OF  

ACCIDENT  

DATE 

REPORTED 
RIDDOR TRIGGER INJURED DESCRIPTION OF INJURY HAZARD TYPE 

07-05-2018 

 

15-05-2018 

 

Over 7 Days 

 

Employee 

 

 

Cut to lower leg – stitches 

required 

 

Struck against 

 

01-06-2018 

 

13-06-2018 

 

Non work related - 

taken to hospital 

 

Member 

of public 

 

 

Fractured pelvis and bruising 

 

 

Slip/Trip/Fall 

 

18-09-2019 

 

26-09-2018 

 

Over 7 Days 

 

Employee 

 

 

Fractured elbow 

 

 

Handling/lifting 

object 

 

 

 

4.4 Leisure Centres 

 

The Leisure Centres at Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and The Deepings are all contracted to ‘1 Life’ 

who have the operational responsibilities for health, safety and welfare for both its employees and 

the facilities they provide to customers. The Council’s responsibilities are to monitor contract 

performance and the Facilities Team performs this as part of their remit. Accident and incident 

numbers secured by Facilities are included as part of monitoring and are provided in this report for 

information. (See Appendix A)  

 

5.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 

A number of performance measures were previously set to identify strengths and weaknesses in 

systems and processes.  A quarterly dashboard of performance indicators are shared with Heads of 

Service at the health and safety meetings specific to accidents/incidents and quarterly monitoring 

activities. 

 

 

92



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 11 of 15 
2018-2019   

FIGURE 6 
 

HEALTH AND SAFETY TARGET/PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR 

2016/17 2017/18  2018/19 

Staff attendance at Corporate Health & Safety induction  100% 100% 100% 

Number of staff RIDDOR notifications to the enforcing authority 4 9 3 

Number of staff lost days as the result of accidents (based upon 
information received) 

88 140 93 

 

6.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY STRATEGY GOING FORWARD 2019-2021 

 

The subjects identified last year and programmed in for 2020 have not changed. These topics are 

important to the approach of Plan, Do, Check, Act and will help the authority to meet its 

responsibility and duty of care.   

High risk operational areas will receive greater scrutiny as they will by their very nature present 

significant opportunity for incident. However, the authority must proportionately apply the same 

policies and procedures of safety need to be applied to all aspects of work.  Even those believed to 

be low risk have the potential for harm if neglected. 

 

6.1 Audit 

 

Internal and external audits, according to the level of risk and service area are conducted in order to 

identify strengths and weaknesses. They also assist in ensuring that actions required for 

improvement are implemented inside agreed time periods. Audits form a key stage of HSG65 (Plan, 

Do, Check, Act) so will be a continued feature of the authorities approach to growing and improving 

health and safety awareness and practice. 

 

6.2 Review and Provision of Guidance  

 

The Corporate Health and Safety Team provide and maintain a range of guidance documents to 

support Mangers and staff.  All essential guidance identified last year has been created and updated 

where required, including home working and electrical safety.  Guidance for young persons and 

new/expectant mothers at work will be among the documents reviewed this year. 

 

6.3 Health & Safety Culture 

 

The health and safety culture within any organisation is extremely important as it defines how all 

employees will behave, operate and ultimately provide an understanding and perspective on how 

93



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 12 of 15 
2018-2019   

important health and safety really is, from the top of the organisation down to operational 

employees.  

 

A cultural change rarely comes quickly, it takes time to change peoples mind, the way they work and 

to instil the trust that change is a good thing. The approach within the organisation is changing and 

improving. The importance of health and safety is being actively supported and promoted by Senior 

Management Team and this can only have a positive impact on the changes the authority needs to 

make. This will demonstrate to all that the Council is working, at every level, to achieve a common 

goal 

 

 A new staff forum has been created and is made up of volunteers from several service areas. The 

forum is a great platform to make health and safety more inclusive and relatable. Including staff in 

decisions the authority makes about safety and giving them opportunity to comment on guidance 

produced helps to demonstrate that this change in approach and attitude is of benefit to all and that 

Health and safety is not simply being done to staff but with staff. 

 

6.4 Risk Assessment and Control 

 

Risk assessments are a legal requirement and are an integral part of the identification of hazards and 

the controls needed to minimise or remove the likelihood of incident and injury. They have 

therefore been a key area of focus 

 

Over 40 officers from all service areas have received training to assist in this task. An internal risk 

assessment audit of all service areas, regardless of risk level, is underway and will highlight any 

opportunities to strengthen controls and approach to risk assessing.  

 

Performing the assessments is only part of the process and must be followed up by ensuring that the 

staff affected are instructed in the risks of their role and that these assessments are regularly 

reviewed. Regular reviews will assist in ensuring that the assessments are keeping up to date with 

changes in ways of working, accident trends and legislation. 

 

6.5 Accident and Near Miss Reporting 

 

Accident reporting, including incident and near miss reporting, helps the Council to identify any 

potential gaps in policies, training and controls ensuring the Council can learn from and strengthen 

its responses and further reduce the chance of injury, ill health and accidents.  

 

Accident numbers are consistent with previous years which demonstrates that the new process is 

working and incidents are being reported.  

 

Another area of focus will be to promote and encourage the reporting of near miss incidents. The 

importance of near miss reporting can be overlooked and near miss incidents are sometimes viewed 

as just a lucky escape or part of the day job. Accidents do and will happen but near miss incidents 

are also a warning and an opportunity to stop an accident before it happens. 

 

94



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 13 of 15 
2018-2019   

6.6 Monitoring of all Council activities 

 

Higher risk service areas continue to monitor their own activities on a regular basis to ensure 

compliance, identify good or bad practice and implement corrective actions where required.  

The control and monitoring of contractors working for the authority has been audited and additions 

made to guidance for managers and those engaging contractors. The use of contractors will be 

incorporated into a program of random audits to be carried out by Corporate Health and Safety. 

An area identified for monitoring is the lone worker device usage within the authority. This will be 

conducted by Corporate Health and Safety to ensure that devices and training are still relevant and 

usage is cost effective without prejudice to safety and safe working practice. 

 

6.7  Council’s Health and Safety Policies 

 

The Council’s safety policies are its statement of intent. They set out the continued commitment of 

the organisation on matters of health and safety and to providing the time and resources necessary 

for the control of risk, so far as is reasonably practicable. 

 

All policies maintained and supported by Corporate Health and Safety are up to date and will not 

require review until 2020/21. 

 

The Unacceptable Behaviour Policy has been amended to allow for the immediate temporary 

inclusion of any significant threats identified. Reducing the time taken to provide staff awareness to 

potential threats and the mitigating controls put in place to prevent harm. The Council have, to this 

point, seen a three year low in the number of persons on the unacceptable behaviour list but the 

level of threat made has increased dramatically and the changes made to the policy reflect this 

ensuring the Council are in a position to take quick and effective action. 

 

7.0 OUTSOURCED LEISURE CENTRE ACCIDENT STATISTICS 

 

The chart below (Figure 7) shows a direct year-on-year comparison of accident numbers for each 

Leisure Centre.  

 

The accident rates table (Appendix A) show that Bourne and Stamford had an increased footfall on 

the previous year and so a small increase in the number of accidents is not unexpected.  The team at 

Bourne Leisure Centre have also confirmed that they have streamlined and implemented a more 

effective way of recording accidents, which has seen their numbers increase on last year, where 

Grantham and Market Deeping have recorded a drop in incidents. The number of visitors per 

accident has increased and the overall accident rate remains very low at 0.04%; this is consistent 

with previous years.  The accident rate does not give any rise for concern. 

95



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 14 of 15 
2018-2019   

FIGURE 7 

 

 

96



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 15 of 15 
2018-2019   

APPENDIX A   

LEISURE CENTRE ACCIDENT RATES (OVER 5 YEARS) 

                  Incident Rates 2018-19 
 

Incident Rates 2017-18 
 

Incident Rates 2016-17 
 

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% Rates 
 

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% Rates 
 

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% Rates 
 

Bourne 191,518 174 1101 0.09 
 

Bourne 182,871 84 2177 0.05 
 

Bourne 173404 67 2588 0.04 
 Deepings 283,782 128 2217 0.05 

 
Deepings 282,721 198 1428 0.07 

 
Deepings 257439 222 1160 0.09 

 Stamford 159,632 71 2248 0.04 
 

Stamford 156,164 53 2946 0.03 
 

Stamford 141425 79 1790 0.06 
 Grantham 663,732 100 6637 0.02 

 
Grantham 668,745 158 4233 0.02 

 
Grantham 662640 185 3582 0.03 

   
   

  
 

  
   

  
 

  
   

  
 Total 1298664 473 2746 0.04 

 
Total 1290501 493 2618 0.04 

 
Total 1234908 553 2233 0.04 

 

                  Incident Rates 2015-16 
 

Footfall per Incident 2014-15 
 

Footfall per Incident 2013-14 
 

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% Rates 
 

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% Rates 
 

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% Rates 
 

Bourne 159832 110 1453 0.07 
 

Bourne 112563 140 804 0.12 
 

Bourne 133734 111 1205 0.08 
 Deepings 230384 249 925 0.11 

 
Deepings 185312 152 1219 0.08 

 
Deepings 176113 80 2201 0.05 

 Stamford 121951 80 1524 0.07 
 

Stamford 103582 103 1006 0.10 
 

Stamford 120654 92 1311 0.08 
 Grantham 613686 212 2895 0.03 

 
Grantham 422214 212 1992 0.05 

 
Grantham 403634 179 2255 0.04 

   
   

  
 

  
   

  
 

  
   

  
 Total 1125853 651 1729 0.06 

 
Total 823671 607 1357 0.07 

 
Total 834135 462 1805 0.06 

 

                   

 

97



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2019
	6 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018-19 and Follow Up Report
	Appendix A Annual Report 2018-19
	Appendix B Follow Up Report

	7 Outturn Report for 2018-2019
	Outturn report appendix 18-19 Final

	8 Counter Fraud Annual Report 2018-19
	9 Health and Safety Annual Report 2018-19
	V8 Working Doc - H  S Annual Report 2018 - 2019 (3)


